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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Finandal Statements

Dpinion

We have audited the Financil Statements of Matribhurni Laghubitta Rittiya Sanstha Ltd, (the ‘Company’)
{Formerty Known as Kisan Laghubitta Bittlya Sanstha Limited which was merged with falpa Samudayik
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited ) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as al Ashedh 31,
2081, Statement of Profit or Lass, Statement of Other Comprehensive income, Statement of Changes in
Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and nates to the Financial Statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies,

friour opinion, the sccompanying Rinancial statements present faidy, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at Ashadh 11, 2081 and its financial pedformance and its cash flaws for the
year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We ronducted our audit in accordance with Mepal Standards on Auditicg (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under thase standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respansibifities for the Audit of the Financial
Stotements section of our report. We are indepeadent of the campany in accordance with the JCAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our sudit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fullilled our other ethical
responsibifities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the awdit evidence we have
obtamed Is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our epinion,

Key Audit Mattors

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
avdit of the fimancial statements of the current penod. These mattors were addressed in the context of
our audit of the fimncial statements as a whole, and In forming our aud#t apinion thereon, and we to
not provide a separate oginion on these matters Our assessed key audif matters und how we addrecsed
tham are outlined below:

Key Audit Matters Auditor's Response
I Impairment of Loans & Advances —
As per carve out on NFRS 9 provided by ICAN, the | ODur audit approach regarding
company has assessed and measured Impairment loss | impairment of loans and advances
on leans and advances as the higher of amount derived | Included.
as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan | Examination of loans and advances
loss provision and amount derfved as per para 5.5 of on sample basis including recovery
NFRS 9, *  Testing the design, existence and
Given the fact that the impairment of loans and operating ¢ffectiveness of internal
advances under incurred kass model  require controls on incoms recognition,
assessment of future cash flows as well as historical loss loan classification and imparment

experiences of portfolios and subsequent diScOUNting | o Testing controls an credit appraisal

to present value and impairment of lsans and advances process

under NRB nonms require assessment of various factors |« Assessment of control  aver
like owerdue stalus along with other factors like mortgage and its ealculation
utiization of loan, wheresbouts of borrowers, etc, We considered the process to be

Vre 1 OF 4
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accurate information, ths Is conssdered as key audit
matiers,

it.  Information Technology -
The preparation of financial statement s highly | Our audit approach regarding
dependent on varnous repons generated by Core | Information Technology included:
Banking System of company. Adequate and appropriate |«  Testing the desgn, operation and

IT comrals are required 1o ensure that 1T application eflectiveness of IT contiol

processes the dala al expecled. Audil oulcome s |=  Understandmg the data mput and

dependent on the extent of IT controls and systems, output system of CRS

and accordingly the above areas are determined Lo be (e Hewew of output reports on sample

a5 hey audit matter. basis and its validation with scurce
We considered the IT system and s

. control to be adequate.
Other Infermation

Management is responsible for the other information
The opther information Compeisas the linandial o non-linancal information included in the ansual repott,
bot does not Include the financial statements and our avditor's repor thereon. The annual repor s

expected to be made avaltable for our review after the date of this auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the financlal statements does not cover the ather information and we do noT express any
form of assurance conclusion therson,

In connection with our audit Of financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes avallable and, in downg so, we will consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtaimed n the
audil, or otherwize eppears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is & material misstatement therein, we are
requited o request management and those charged with governance to correct the material
misstatement.

Responsibilives of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial siatements
Management k= responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements In
gecordance with NFRSs, and for such interndl control as the dirtclors determiine iy necessary 1o enalile
the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of erratf.

in preparing the financial statements, management |5 responiible for assessing the company's ability to
continee as 3 going concern, disclosing, as applicabile, matters related 10 going concern and wslnge the
going concern basis of sccounting unless management either intends to liquesdate the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for averseelng the Company's flrancial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are 10 obidin ressonable assuronce about whether the financial statements as @ whole are

free from material misstatement, wihether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repart that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is nat a guarantee that an

audit canducted in acordanca with NSAs will always detect a matertal misstaterment when |t exists.
Misstatemenis can arike from fraud or ervor and are considered matarial If, Individually or in the
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aggregate, they could ressonably be expectad to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As partof an audit In accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
I} ldentify and assess the risks of matesial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fravd
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obitain audit evidence that
i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud i higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresantations, o the override of Internadl control.

i) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s imternal control,

4i) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acoounting
estimated and relared disdosures made by management,

v} Conclude on the appropristeness of management’s uwe of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence abtained, whether 3 material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue a4 a going concern. If we
tonclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are raquirad 10 draw attention In our auditor's report to
the redated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
apinion, Our conclusons are based on the audit evidence obitained up to the date of our auditar's report.
However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a poing concern,

v} Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and svents in 3
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, AMNONE OUHer matlers, the planned scape
and timing of the audit and significant awdit findings, ncluding any significant deficiencies in intemal
control that we identify during our audit. :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comphied with relevant
ethical raquirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relagtionships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legol and Regulatory Requirements
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we further raport that:

I We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose for our audit

W, The accounts and records of the Bank has been maintained ac required by baw

. Financial statements are In agreement with the books of account maintained by the Bank

iv.  The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of asset of the
Bank are adequate as per the Directives iisued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

V. Imour opinion and to the best of our Information and sccording to the explanation given o
us, the Board of Directors, the representative or any emplovee of the Bank has not acted
contrary to the provision of law relating to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to the
Bank celiberately or acted in a manner that would jeopardize the intetest and security of the
Bank.

vi.  The operations of the Bank were within l1s jurisd
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vil.  The Bank has not acted in a manner 10 jeopardize the interest and sacurity of the depositors
and investors.

will,  The Bank has a centralized core accounting system. The details recelved from branches of the

Bank, though are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of ouraudit, 2nd

.  WWe have not come across any fraudulenca in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our

'."Iﬂ" pat™

CA Aashish Lamiclhare
Partner

N.S. A & Associates,

Charterad Accountants
COPNO: 1340

UDIN 25031 eCA02008WFxLI4

Place : Kathmandu
Date : 2081/12/02
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
(Formerly Kisan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited)
Baliya, Lamkichuha-04, Kailali

Notes to Account and Significant Accounting Policies

1. General Information
Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited formerly known as Kisan Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Lid
(hereinafier referred to as “MLBSL™) 1s a public limited company incorporated on 2075 Magh 07
(Corresponding to 21" January 2019) at the Company Registrar Office, Kathmandu. The company commenced
micro-finance business from under the license granted by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) on 2075 Falgun 13. The
address of its registered office 1s Lamkichuha-04, Kailali. The company currently operates its business in Nepal
through 236 branches.

1.1. Financial Statements
The Financial Statement of MLBSL for the year ended 31" Asadh 2081 approved on 2* Chitra 2081 by the
Board of Directors comprises Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to the Financial
Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.
The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibilify for the preparation and presentation of Financial
Statements in accordance to NFRS as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.

1.2. Principal Activities and Operations
The principal actvity of the company 1s to provide microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits,
Microinsurance and Remittance Services to low-income families of Nepal following group lending based on
Grameen Bank. Bangladesh Model,
Ordinary shares of the company 1s listed with Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE) and its symbol 1s MATRI.
There is no investment in form of subsidiary or associates as at 31* Asadh 2081.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with provisions of
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards with allowed carve-outs as issued by Accounting Standard Board (ASB)
and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The significant accounting
policies applied in Preparation of financial statements are set out in Note-3. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements comply with the requirements of format issued
by Nepal Rastra Bank via Unified Directives to Microfinance Fls, 2080,

2.2. Reporting Period and approval of Financial Statements

Reporting Period

The Institution follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar. The institution has
prepared the financial statements that comply with NFRS applicable for the period ending on or after 26th
Ashadh 2081, together with the comparative period data as at and for the period ending 317 Ashadh 2080 as
described 1n 1ts accounting pelicies.

Approval of Financial Statements

The accompanied Financial Statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its board meeling
held on 2" Chitra 2081 and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in  Annual General
Meeting.
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1.3. Functional and Presentational Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial mformation presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated
otherwise.

2.4. Use of estimates, assumptions and Judgements
As a result of the uncertainties inherent in business activities, many items in Financial Statements cannot be
measured with precision but can only be estimated. Estimation involves judgements based on the latest
available, reliable information. An estimate may need revision if changes occur in the circumstances on which
the estimate was based or as a result of new information or more experience. During the preparation of the
financial statemenis, NFRS requires the management to make critical accounfing judgments, estimates, and
assumptions in applying the accounting policies that have a material impact on the financial statements.

The underlying assumptions made while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such
revision is recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are applied prospectively. Change
In estimates 15 not the correction of an error, Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been applied along
with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates in the relevant section of the notes wherever the
estimates have been applied.

2.5. Changes in Accounting Policies

The same accounting policies are normally adopted in each period and from one period to the next to maintain the
compatibility of the Financial Statements of the entity over time to identify trends in the financial position.
performance and cash flows, however the changes when required by NFRS or due the requirement that results in
the financial statements providing more reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transaction, other
evenls or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows are made and the changes
are applied retrospectively. The entity has used the same accounting policies in its opening NFRS Statement of
financial position and throughout all periods presented in its first NFRS financial statements. Those accounting
policies have complied with each NFRS effective at the end of its first NFRS reporting period except those
specifically stated under relevant notes below.,

2.6. New Standard Issued but not yet Effective

As per the guidelines of the ICAN, When International Accountng Standard Board revises, amends or withdraws
International Accounting Standards, [FRSs, IFRIC or SIC, such revisions, amendments and withdrawals shall
accordingiy be treated as effected with inumediate revision, amendment and withdrawal in NFRS by ASB as well, to
the extent not in conflict with existing national laws. Few carve outs on applicable Accounting Standards as provided
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the financial institution. Further, a number of new
standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by International Accounting
Standard Board after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when
Accounting Standard Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.7. New Standards and Interpretations not adopted
In preparing financial statements, Standards and pronouncements 1ssued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal has been
adopted. Management has used its assumptions and understandings for the preparation of financial statements under
compliance with NFRS, however certain interpretations might vary regarding the recognition, measurement, and other
related provisions where the standards are not specific and not clear.

1.8. Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one vear, the Financial Institution considers
the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact 1s material. Various internal and extemal factors have
been considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the Cash Flows of the Financial Instutution. The
Market Interest Rate on Staff loans except housing loan has been precluded from discounting as management considers
the current interest rate as market rate under the same class of loans. Housing loans have been considered under the EIR
method. Management considers Lease payments under an operating lease to be recognized as an expense when accrued
as the pavments 1o the lessor are structured (o increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

°= #3! A uiadcal 20C0/C9




amﬂaﬁﬁlaﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬂmﬂf-’a‘lﬁ‘l.

MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

2.9. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the lLiabilities simultaneously. Income
and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss, unless required or permitted by Nepalese
Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting

Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Commitiee (SIC)) and as specifically
disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Institution.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1.  Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:

e Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value,

* Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized al the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of the plan assets.

e [nvestment securities has been measured at fair valne under NFRS 9 "Financial Instruments",
wherever applicable.

e Financial assefs and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value.

e Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost at measured using a rate that is a
close approximation of an effective interest rate.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revisions (o accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in notes.

Materiality and Aggregation
In compliance with NFRS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is
presented separately in financial statements. Items of Dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately
unless they are maferial. Such presentation is consistent to the format issued by NRB.

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity,

3.2. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenis include cash in hand/vault, balances with B/FIs, and highly liquid financial
assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition dates that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Company in the management of its
short-term commitments, Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of
financial position.

3.3. Financial Assets and Liabilities
3.3.1. Recognition
The Company initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of
financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits on the date
that they are oniginated which is the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debentures,
government and NRB securities are recognized on trade date at which the Company
commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of
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financial assets are recognized on trade date at which the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

All financial assets and liabilittes are imtially recognized at theiwr cost value and are
subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the respective classification.

3.3.2. Classification
A. Financial Assets

The Company classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured al amortized cost or fair
value on the basis of the Company’s business mode! for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are
as follows:

i Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met: The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding,

ii. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial
assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for
trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction
cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets
are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss.

. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that 1s not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the
Company makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument
s to be recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value
though other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and

changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.
B. Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;

. Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition. transaction costs are

directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred,
Subsequent changes in fair value 1s recognized at profit or loss
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0 Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

3.3.3. Measurement
i. Initial Measurement: A financial asset or financial Liability 1s measured initially at fair value plus
or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its aceuisition or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii. Subsequent Measurement: A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either
al fair value or at amortized cost based on the classification of the financial asset or liability.
Financial asset or Liability classified as measured at amortized cost 15 subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest rate method. The amortized cost of a financial assel or
financial hability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial Liability 1s measured at
initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectbility. Financial assets classified at
fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

3.3.4. De-recogunition
i.  De-recognition of Financial Assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and. it does not retain control of the financial asset. On de-recognition of
a financial asset. the difference between the carrying amount of the assef (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset transterred) and the consideration recerved (including any
new asset obtained less anv new liability assumed) shall be recognized in profit and loss account.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the
extent to which 1t 1s exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

ii. De-recogunition of Financial Liabilities
A financial liability 1s derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
canceled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the orginal
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss,

3.3.5. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
The company has not offset any of its financial assets with financial Liabilities as at 16 July 2019,
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3.3.6. Determination of Fair Value
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair
value of a Liability reflects 1ts non-performance nsk.
The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inpufs are observable.

Level 3 Portiolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, 1s not based on observable market data.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active il quoted prices are readily and
regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price — 1.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair
value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price, If
such fair value 1s evidenced by comparison with other observable current markert transactions in
the same instrument (without modification) or based on a valvation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets, then the difference 1s recognized in profit or loss on
initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or loss
immediately but is recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the
instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at book value per share.

3.3.7. Tmpairment
At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have
been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the mnitial
recognition of the assef (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by
the Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that a
borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or
other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Microfinance, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
Microfinance. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline
in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather
than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the ferms have been renegotiated, any impairment 1s
measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no
longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all
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criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an
individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR,

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

. Whether the counterparty 1s in default of principal or interest payments,

. When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its
obligation.

. Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of
the counter-part.

< Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished
financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of
scheduled payments.

. Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot vet be
identified with specific individual financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans
and advances and held-to-maturity mvestment securities are assessed for specific impairment.
Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that
has been incurred but not yet identified.

The company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at amortized
cost at both specific asset and collective level. The company first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant and
that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively. If there 1s objective evidence
that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of
portfolio behavior. In assessing collective impairment, the Institution uses historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates,
loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes (0 ensure that they remain appropriate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there 1s no realistic prospect
of future recovery, and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Institution.
If in a subsequent vear, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss Is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off 1s
later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the "Non-operating income’.

Carve out adopted for assessment of impairment charge

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39:
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, to determine the amount of any
impairment loss unless the entity is bank or financial institutions registered as per Bank and
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Financial Institutions Act, 2073. Bank and Financial Institutions shall measure impairment
loss on loan and advances as higher of amount derived as per prudential norms prescribed
by Nepal Rastra Bank and amount determined as per paragraph 63. However, bank and
financial institutions shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measuremeni to determine the amount of impairment loss on financial
assets other than loan and advances.

The entity has restructured the loan in accordance with the directive from the NREB. In the
previous year, the restructuring led to a reduction in the loan loss provision by Rs
15,784,223.99, which was incorrectly recorded as a lability under schedule 4.21 of the
previous year's financial statements, The same has been correcied in the current year, and
the amount is now properly reflected as income in the current year's financial statements.

3.4. Property, Plant and Equipment
3.4.1. Recognition and Management

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, imitially recognized
at cost, if, and only if:

« It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the enfity; and

* The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The Company adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment except for the land which
subsequently accounted using the Revaluation Model. Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale assel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset are derecognized when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurrad.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Although the entity has adopted the Revalvation model for Subsequent Measurement of Land but
the entity hasn’t carryout the valuation of the land to determine its fair value on annual basis,

Assets with a value of less than NPR 5,000 are charged off to revenue irrespective of their useful
life in the year of purchase.

3.4.2.  Depreciation

Depreciation of assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is
generally on commissioning and not when it starts to be used. Items of Property, Plant and
Equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over its estimated useful lives on a Written down
value basis. Land is not depreciated.

Each part of an item of property. plant and equipntent with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, A significant part of an item of property,
plant and equipment may have a useful life and a depreciation method that are the same as the
useful life and the depreciation method of another significant part of that same 1tem. Such parts
may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge. The depreciation charge for each period
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shall be recognized in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
The rate of depreciation are calculated as per the life of the asset. The rates of depreciation based
on useful life as per the categories of Property. Plant and Equipment are as follows:

Asset Class Rate
Building %%

Leasehold Improvements 15%
Office Equipment 25%
Machinery 25%
Other Assets 25%
Vehicles 20%

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

3.5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
351,  Goodwill
Goodwill arising out of acquisifion is initially measured at cost. Goodwill 15 measured at the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred taken together with the amount recognized for any non-controlling
interests and any previous interest held, over the net 1dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Subsequent to nitial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. There is
no any Goodwill on the reporting date.

3.5.2. Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, which are held for and used
in the provision of services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An intangible asset appearing
in the Entty’s Financial statement 18 computer software. Entity applies NAS 38 — “Intangible Assets™ in
accounting for its intangible assets.
Entity recognizes an intangible asset when: -
1. The cost of the asset can be measured reliably; -

2. There is control over the asset as a result of past events (for example, purchase or self-creation); and

3. Future economic benefits (inflows of cash or other assets) are expected from the asset.
Intangibles can be acquired by separate purchase; as part of a business combination; by a government grant.
by exchange of assets; or by self-creation (internal generation). Intangible assets are initially measured at cost
and subsequently these are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
losses.

3.5.3 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the Cash Generating Unit level as appropriate, when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value is impaired. The wseful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the “indefinite life assessment’ continues to remain valid. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite 1s made on a prospective basis. At the reporting date the Entity does

not have intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

3.5.4 De-recognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are de-recognized on disposal or when future economic benefits are no more expected from
their use. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceed and the carrying amount of the asset. Such a gain or loss 1s recognized in
profit or loss.
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3.5.5 Amortization and impairment of intangible assefs

The useful lives of intangible assels are assessed as either finite or infinite. Except for goodwill other
intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss from the date when
the asset 1s available for use, over the estimated useful economic life.

Class of Intangible Assets | Estimated Useful Life

Software Up to 5 years

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense by the Group in
previous annual financial statements or interim financial statements are not recognized as part of the cost of
an intangible asset later. Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate

3.6. Income Tax: Tax expense compnses current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

3.6.1. Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.
Current Income Tax is calculated as per the Provision of Income Tax Act-2038.

3.6.2. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred income tax
15 determined vsing tax rate applicable to the Company as at the reporting date which is expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deterred
tax assets are recognized where 1t is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.7. Deposits
Institution's deposits consist of money placed into the Institution by its customers. These deposits are made
to deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings accounts, margin deposit accounts, call deposit
accounts and current accounts. Details and further disclosures about deposits have been explained in relevant
notes.

3.8. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and when
the amount can be reliably estimated as per the requirement of NAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
& Contingent Asset”. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to seftle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money 1s material). When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, areceivable s recognized as asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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A disclosure for contingent liabilities 1s made where there is:

e A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity; or

e A present obligation that arises from past evenls but is not recognized because:

¢ Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or

e The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

A contingent asset 18 a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

39. Revenue

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, disposal income etc, Revenue is recognized to
the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Institution and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The Institution applies NFRS 15 “Revenue from Contract With Customers™ in the accounting
of revenue, unless otherwise stated. Revenue 1s not recognized during the period in which its recoverability
of income is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition are as below:

3.9.1 Interest income

Interest income are recognized under accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) mn the profit or
loss for all interest-bearing financial assets except loans categorized as bad loan measured at amortized cost,
Effective Interest Rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash payments
through the expected life of financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Effective Interest
Rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those
classified at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income and service income over the expected
life of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability, The effective interest
rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or Liability by estimating the future cash flows
after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation
includes all amounts expected to be paid or received by the Financial Institution including expected penalties
that are an integral part of the overall return. Direct incremental transaction costs related fo the acquisition.
issue, or disposal of financial instruments are also taken into account in the calculation. Once a financial
asset or a group of similar financial assefs has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows to measure the
impairment loss.

Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Financial Instutution has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate
implicit on individual loan products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the
Financial Institution charges on the loans and applying the EIR method would not be practical. Hence, initial
service fees have been recognized during the period when such income accrues rather than bemng included
within the component of interest income under the EIR method.
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Accrued Interest has been accounted as per "Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019" issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank, in July 2019. Interest from Loans, where contractual payments of principal and /or
interest are not more than 3 months in arrears are considered as Performing loans and Interest Income has
been booked accordingly. Remaining Interest Income. 1n relation to Non-Performing Loans, has been treated
as Interest Suspense and accounted accordingly.

Out of Total Interest Accrued of Rs. 747,216,507 during the financial year. Interest Accrued from
Performing Loan is Rs. 387.487,497.21 and from Non-Performing Loan is Rs. 183,086,729.37

3.9.2 Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included
in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee,
service charges are recognized as the related services are performed.

3.9.3 Dividend income

Dividend on investment in resident company 1s recognized when the right to receive payment 1s established.
Dividend income are presented in other operating income, net income from other financial instruments at
fair value through prefit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification of the equity
instruments.

3.9.4 Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and [inancial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by
management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis:

*The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measunng the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

*The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, 1n accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

*»The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded 1n the statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss on financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in statement of Profit or Loss. Interest
earned or incurred is accrued in Interest income or Interest expense, respectively, using the effective interest
rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in other operating income when the right to the payment has
been established.

3.10. Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilites including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective

interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the
Institution’s trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading

assets and Liabilities in net trading income.

Entity has applied the carve out for the recognition of the interest expense by applying the implicit rate on
the Borrowing from the Banks.
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3.11. Employee Benefits
3.11.1.1. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term emplovee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus
required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits
include (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting period) wages, salaries and social security
contributions, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, profit-sharing and bonuses and other non-monetary
benefits

3.11.2. Post- Employment Benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes the following:

1. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profii or
loss 1n the periods during which related services are rendered. Contributions to a defined contribution plan
that are due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the
service are discounted to their present value.

All emplovees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund in which both the
employee and the Company contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate of 10% of the basic salary and
gratuity at 8.33% on monthly basic salary is contributed by the company. The Company does not assume
any future liability for provident fund and gratuity benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and
the fair value of any plan assets are deducted, The Company recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of
deferred tax arising from defined benefit plans immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses
related to defined benefit plans in emplovee benefit expense in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains
and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement
occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement comprises any resulting change in the fair value of plan
assets, any change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation, any related actuarial gains and losses
and any past service cost that had not previously been recognized. During the vear

i, Other long term benefits

Other long-term employee benefits are all employee benefits other than short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits and termination benefits. Other long term benefit includes long term paid absences

such home leave and sick leave. The company recognizes all actuarial gain and losses in statement of profit
or loss. For other long-term employee benefits, an entity shall recognize the net total of the following
amounts in profit or loss,

®  Service cost

interest cost
¢ re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability including actuarial gains or losses.
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1v. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed, without

realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense 1f the Company
has made an offer of voluntary redundancy. it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date,
then they are discounted to their present value.

v.  Other Long-Term Benefils
The Financial Institution's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits, other than gratuity, is
the amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The Financial Institution has recognized accumulated leave liability as other long term employee
benefits. The discount rate is the average yield at the reporting date on current government bonds.

3.12. Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific assel or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asser or assets, even if that right 1s not explicitly specified in an arrangement. The total cash outflow for

lease is NPR  19315622.95 for the year ended 31 Ashad, 2081. Interest on lease liabilities is NPR
3.919.858.60 The company's lease mainly comprises of buildings .The company leases building for
operational purposes.

The Company assesses whether a contract 1s or contains a lease at the iception of the contract. The
assessment involves the exercise of judgement about whether it depends on a specified asset, whether the
Company contains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset, and whether the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease Liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjustad
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any 1mtial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset 1s subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets an defermined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses. if any. and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses an incremental borrowing rate specific to the company, term and currency of
the contract, Generally, the company uses iis incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. Lease
payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include fixed payments, vanable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate known at the commencement date; and extension option payments ot
purchase options which the Company is reasonably certain to exercise.

Variable lease payments that don't depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and the ROU asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers those payments occur and are included in the line "other expense” in the
statement of profit or loss.
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After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities 1s increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made and remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to the related
ROU asset) when there is a change in future lease payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or
rate or in case of reassessment of options. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases as
well as low-value assets and recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.13. Share Capital and Reserves

The Institution classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in accordance
with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total
assets of an entity after deducting all its Liabilities, Common shares are classified as equity of the Institution
and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

The Institution 1s required to maintain the capital adequacy ratio imposed by the regulator. The ratio is fixed
at 8.00% for current year and the Institution has maintained the required ratio.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the equity.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, exchange
equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, fair value reserve, revaluation reserve and other reserves.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as per the requirement of the Unified Directives to MFI'S
2080 with effect in retained earning computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

During the year, Kishan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd merged with Jalpa Samudiyak Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Ltd at a swap ratio of 1:0.8834, Consequently, the share capital of Kishan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Ltd was reduced by Rs 58.809,130. After accounting for taxes amounting to Rs 41,166,391, this amount has
been recorded as a Capital Reserve in accordance with Directive No. 4.4.3 of the Unified Directive of
Microfinance 2079,

3.14. Earnings per share including diluted earnings

Basic earnings per equity share are computed as per NAS 33 “Earnungs per Share”. Basic earnings per equity share are
computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the
vear. Boous shares mvolve the issue of shares without anv consideration and hence do not change the resources
available to the enfity. Accordingly, adjustments of bonus shares issued have been done. The entity does not hold any
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and hence the Basic EPS itself is the Diluted EPS. The entity has no discontinued
operation and so the amounts per share for the continued and discontinued operation have not been reported.

3.15. Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the eatity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity),
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about
resotrce allocation to each segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available,
The Financial Institution has identified segments based on the geographic locations of its offices in the seven provinces
of the country. Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the
respective segment. All "business transactions of business units located in a particular province are grouped together.
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashad 2081

Particulars Notes 31 Ashadh 2081 31 Ashadh 2080
Asscls

Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 41.861.943 22 807,253
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 59,079,575 36,079,575
Placement with Bank and Financtwl Instiutions 43 845,782,268 100443211
Derivative financial instrunents 44 - -
Other tradmg assets 45 -

Loan and Advances 1o MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - -
Louns and advances o customers 4.7 11.371.533.016 202 870,604
Invesiment Securities 48 1000, 000 1 OO0, 000
Cument Tax Assets 40 | 7,904, (155 0883216
Investment property 410 - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 217.787.419 i 16,404,177
Codwill and Intangible Assets 4.12 1,662,590 931 89S
Deferred tax Assels 4.13 27.617,920 4310804
{Other assels 414 100,389,958 77,977,326
Total Assets 12.594.619.343 6.603,709,061

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 415 - -
[Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - -
Derivative Fmancial instruments 417 - -
Deposit from cus tomers 4.18 3.970,029,974 | 347.385.857
Bomowings 4.19 6,749.330,692 4386,528 824
Current Tux Lubilities 49 - -
Provisions 420 - -
Dieterred tax Linbilty 4.13 -
Other liabilities 21 TH,002817 183,662,032
Debt Secunties Issues 422 - -
Subordinuted Liabilities 423 : :
Total liahilities 11444363482 5917.576,712
Eiquity
Share Capital 4.24 028,357,337 504,306,467
Share premium
Rétained caming (52,720, 184) 16,993 488
Other Reserves 4.25 574.627.708 164,772,395
Total equity mttributabe to equity holders 1.150,255,861 686,132,350
Non-controlling interesis -
Total equity 1,150,255,861 686,132,350
Total equity and liabilities 12.594.619.343 6.,603,709.061
Contngent lmbibtes and commitment 426 -
Net assets value per share 183,06 136.04
(0044 (0.17)
Diwus Dhakal Laxmi Prasad Sharma Pradhumana Kumar Bhattarai Bimala Yog: Sushma Gautam
Assistamt General Manager  Chael Executive Officer Independent Director Director Dhrector
Arjun Shrestha Bharat Bahadur Homal Shamblhu Prosad Cihiore Lok Roj Sharma  CA. Aashish Lanichhane
Director Public Director Directo Chagrman NSA & Associates

Dute: 2081-12412

Chaortered Accountat

6: #3! A uiadcal 20C0/C9



emﬂﬁaqﬁﬂﬁfﬁmﬂw'lﬁi.

MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For The Period Ended 318t Ashadh 2081

Notes 31 Ashadh 2081 31 Ashadh 2080

Interest Income 4.27 933.621.207 054,890,844
Interest Expense 4.28 672,880,495 TOR,634.6] |
Net interest income 260,740,712 146236233
Fees and Conuission Income 424 48,322 751 64,737,634
Fees and Commission Expense 4.30 - -
Net fee and Commission income 48,522,751 64,737.634
MNet interest fee and commission income 309.263.463 10973867
Net Trading Income 4.3 - .
Other Operating Income 4,32 - -
Total operating income 309,263,463 310,973,867
Impamment charge/ (reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 55.325,024 28,935 401
Net Operating income 253938439 282,038,466
Personnel Expenses 4.34 221 982283 214,519,359
(ther Operating Expenses 4.35 41,577,724 43,010,387
Deprecianion and Amortisation 4.36 22023 438 21,516,119
UOperafing expenses 85,583,445 279,046,065
Net operating Profit (31.645,006) 1,992401
Non operating Income 4.37 - -
Non operating Expense 4.38 - -
PProfit before income tax (31,645.006) 2,992.401
Income tay expense 4.39

Cument tax (3.964,196) (1.889.761)

Deferred tax income / (expensc) 0,672,699 10,509,512
Profit for the vear (27,936,503) 11.612.152
Profit attributable to:
Non-controlling mterests - -
Equity shareholders of the bank (27,936,503) 11,612,152
Profit for the period (27.936.,503) 11,612,152
Earnings per sharc:
Basic camings per ordinary share (NPR) (4.45) 2.30
Diluted Earning per share (NPR) (4.45) 230

[was [hokal Lo Proasad Sharmn
Assistunl Gieneral Manager  Chief Exceutive Officet

Prodhumana Kumor Bhattarm Bimala Yo Sushma Gautam
Independent Director Dhrector Dhrector

Arqun Shrestha Bharat Bahadur Hamal Shambhu Prasad Ghimire Lok Raj Sharma CA. Aaslhish Lamichhane
Director Public Darector Director Chaurmtan NSA & Associutes
Charteted Accountat

Date; 2081-12-02
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For The Penod Ended 31st Ashadh 208]

Noles

31 Ashadh 2081

31 Ashadh 2080

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Cams/(losses) fromi investments in equity instruments measured

at far value
Cams/(losses) on Revalation

Actunal gams/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Cams/(losses ) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gams/(losses) (ansing from trans lating financial

assels of toreign operation)
Income taxrelatmg to above nems
Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be

reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of taxation

Total comprehensive income for the vear

(27.936,503)

(14,755,296)
4,426,589
(10.328,707)

(10,328.707)
(38.265.210)

11,612,152

(4.696,853)
1.409.056
(3.287,797)

(3.287.797)
8.324.354

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Non-controlling interests
Egquity shareholders

(38,265.210)

8324354

Total Comprehensive income for the period

(38,265.210)

8,324,354

Diwas Dhakol
Assistunt General Manager

Laxmi Prasad Sharma
Chief Executive Officer

Bharut Bahadur Hamal
Public [hrector

Arjun Shrestha
Director

Drate: 2081-12-402

Pradhumana Kumar Bhattarm

Independent Director

Shambhu Prasad Ghimire
Director

Bimula Yogi
Director

Lok Faj Sharmn
Charrman

Sushma Gautam
Director

CA. Adshish Lamichhane
NAA & Associotes
Chartered Accountat
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For The Period Ended 31st Ashadh 2081
(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars 31 Ashadh 2081 31 Ashadh 2080
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss (27.936.503) 11,612,152
Appropriations:
a. General reserve - 2.322.430
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - -
¢. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund - 116,122
e. Other-Employee Welfare Fund - -
f. Client's Protection Fund - 116,122
2. Employees' training fund 939,835 1.911.655
I Other

Adjfustment in Retained Earnings 7.208
Profit or (loss) before 1*eg1|lalm'y-mlju5tment (28.883.545) 7,.145.823
Regulatory adjnstment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (26,366,717) (17,888.924)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) = -
e. Deferred tax assefs recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (9.672.699) 10,648,347
f. Goodwll recognised (-) impaument of Goodwill (+) = -
g, Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -

h. Prior period lease liability adjustments (6.314.481)
1. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) . 1.064.244
J. Other (+-) (Restructure Reserve) (38,800,969) -
K. Profit brought forward from Previous Years 16,993,488 38.403,896
|. Profit brought from Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Lid 40,315,740
m. Previous year's declared dividend distributed this year (Share + Cash) - 34,732,565
Distributable profit or (loss) (52.729.184) 16,993 488
Diwas Dhakal Laxn Prasad Sharm Pradhwmana Kumar Bhattara Bimala Yo Sushimi Gautam
Assistant General Manager Chiet Executive Otficer Independent Darector Director Dhrector
Arjun Shrestha Bharat Bahadur Hamal Shambhu Prasad Ghimire Lok Ra) Sharma  CA. Aashish Lamichhane
Dhrector Public Director Director Chatrman NSA & Associntes

| _hartered Aceoounuat
Date: 2081-12-02
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For The Period Ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Cash Mows from operating activities

31 Ashadh 2081

Restated
31 Ashadh 2080

Interest Received 033,621,207 954,890,844
Fees and Other Income 48,522,751 64,737,634
Dividend income 0

Receipts from Other Operating Activities 0

Interest Paid (668.485.456) (708.654.611)
Commission and Fees Expenses - -
Eimplovee Expenses (221,982 283) (214,519,550)
Other Expenses Paid (41.577,724) (43.010.387)
Deferred tax income / (expense) 9.672.699 10,509,512
Acturial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (10.328,707) (3.287.797)
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses (55.325.024) (28,935.401)
Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (5,882,536) 31,730,235
(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets (4.719.059.285) 413,440,206
Momney at Call and Short Notice - -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Other Trading Assets - -
Loans and Advances fo Other Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Loan and Advances to Customers (4,796,552.977) 405.9077,328
Other Assets 77.493.692 7,462,878
Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities 5.526,786,770 (471,571.631)
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - s
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposit from customers 2.622.644.117 (39,851,847)
Bormowings 2,362,801 .868 (446,541,4209)
Other Liabilities 541,340,785 14,821,644
Amount paid from Reserves

Taxes paid (5,964,196) (1.889.761)
Net cash from operating activities 795,880,753 (28.290,952)
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8.487,006) (48,366,210)
Disposal of property. plant and equipment - 372,588
Investment in subsidiaries, associates & joint ventures

Purchase of investment securities - -
Disposal and maturity of investinent securities

Dividends received from investment in securities

Net cash used in investing activities (8,487,006) (47,994,322)

Cash flows from (inancing activities
Issue of ordinary and preference share capital, net of expenses

Borrowings
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders, net of scrip

MNet cash (used in)/from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivaients

787.393.746

(76.285,274)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 159,330,039 235,615,313
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 046,723,786 159,330,039
Diwas Dhakal Laxmi Prasad Shatma Pradbumani Kumar Bhattarai Bimala Yogi Sushima Gattam
Assistant General Manager  Chief Executive Officer Independent Director Director Director

Bhurat Bahadur Hamal
Public Dhrector

Arpun Shrestha

[ mrector Director

Date: 2081-12-02

Shambhu Prasad Ghimire

Lok Ray Sharmo
Chamman

CA. Aushish Lamichhane

NSA & Associates
Chartered Acceountat
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITYA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Cash and Cash Equivalents Note no: 4.1

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at vault, balances with other banks and financial
mstitutions, money at call and short nonce and other highly liquad financil assets, which are subject to msignificant risk of changes i
value, net of any provisions.

Particulary As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 318t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Cash Balance 41,861,943 22 8157253
Bank Balance - -
Money ut Call and Short Notice - .
Other - -
Total 41,861,943 212,807,253

The camrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approxmate fair vialue at the reportmg date.

Note no: 4.2
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank meluding balance for compulsory cash meserve, securinies purchased from Nepal Rastr
Hank under resale agreement and other deposits with NRB has been presented m this schedule

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Statutory Balances with NRB 59,079,575 36,079,575

Statutory Balances with BiFis - .
secuntes Purchased under Resale Agreement
Other Deposit and Recevable fromNRB
Total 59,079,575 36,079,575
Note no: 4.3
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placement with Domestic Banks and Financial Institutions with onginal matunties of more than three months fromacquisition date are
presented below:

Particulars As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashadh
(15 July 20124) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Placement with Domestic Banks and Financial Institutions 843782268 100443211
Less: Impumment Allowance - -
Total 845,782,168 443,211

% #¢! afias ufadeal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiyva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Derivative inancial instruments Note no: 4.4

The Finoncial Institution does not have any Derrvative Fmancinl Instroment

Particulars As at A1st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 Julv 2024) J080 (16 July
20213)
Amount Amount

Held For Trading . =
Interest rate swap = 5
Currency swap . -
Forward exchange contract ; :

Others - .
Held for Risk Management - .
Interest mie swap - ’
Currency swap - .

Forward exchange contrac - -

(hers B -

Total - -

Note no: 4.5
Other Trading Assets

The Finnneial Instiution does not have any Other Trmdmg Assety

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

Treasury Bills . =
Cowernement Bands = :
NRE Bonds - :
Domestic Compontte Bonds = :

Equity Instruments . =

Totul - -
—_—
Pledged - -
Non Pledged - -
Total - -
Note no: 4.6
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives
The Fmancil Instdution does not hove any Loans and Advanees to Banks and Financml Insttutions
Farticulars As at 115t Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 Julv 2024) 2080 (16 July
1023)
Amount Amiount

Loan to Microfinance Institutions -

Loans to Financial Institutions

Loans to Cooperatives .

Less: Impaitment on Loans 1o MFl< and Cooperatives -

Total - -

% #¢! afias uladeal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4.6.1

Allowance for Impairment on Loans to MFIs and Cooperatives

The Financml Institution does not have uny Loans und Advanees to Banks und Fimancml Institutions.,

Particulars

Openmng Balance

Impairment Loss for the Year
Charge for the Year
Recaveries/Reversal Jor the yveur
Amount Wntten Off

Closing Balance

Loans and advances to customers

As af 318t Ashadh 2081 As at 31s1 Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

Note no: 4.7

Loans and Advances extended to customers presented ot wmortised cost considering the mterest accrued on performing loans less

collective impamrment calculated as per NRB Duectives 15 presented below

Particulars

Loans and Advances ot Anortised Cost
Less:

Collective Inpairment on Loan to Customer
Individual lmpairment on Loan to Customer
Net Amount

Loans and Advances mensured at FVIPL

Total

As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Anmount
12,027,987,337 641,113,541
656,453.720.97 208,242,937

11,371,533.616 6.202,870,604

11.371,533.616 6,202 870,604

Nate no: 4.7.1

Analysis of Loans and advances to customers- By Product

Product

Tem

Hire Parchase
Reswdential

Others (Stafl Loan)
Total

Intérest Recervahle

Total

As at 31st Ashadh 2081  As at 3151 Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
1023)
11,820,919.601 6358232 444
85,752,787 -
1 1.906.672.388 6. 358232444
121,314,949 52,881,097

12,027 987337 6,411,113,54]
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
Note no: 4.7.2

Analysis of Loans and advances to customers- By Collateral

Particulars As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As ot 315t Ashudh
(15 Julv 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Immovable Asgset 630,842 201 30LIR1 478
Covernment Guarante - -
Fied Deposit Recoq - -
Personal Guarantee - =
Other Collateral - -
Unsecured Loan 11,397,145,136 6,055,950,966
Total 12,027,987 337 6,358,232 444
Allowance for Collective Impairment on Loans and Advances Note no: 4.7.3
As ot 315t Ashadh 2081 As af 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Balance at the Beginning of the Period 201,532,267 195,091,761
[mpairment Loss for the Year,
Charge for the Year 434,921 454 444 306
Reversal for the Year -
Balance at the End of the Penod 656,453,721 201532267
Note no: 4.8
Investment Securities
The Frmancial Institution does not have any Investment m secunties or government bonds
Particulars As gt 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2021)
Amount Amount
Investment Secunties measured al Amonmed Cost
Investment in cquity measured at FVTOCT 1,000,000 00,000
Total 1004 0E LGG0.000
Note no: 4.8.1
Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost
Particulars As gt 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Debt securities - -
Covernment bonds - -
Government treasury bills = %
Nepal Rastr Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits ins truments - -
Other - -
Less: spectfic allowances for mparment - -
Total - -

% #¢! afias uladeal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Motes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4.8.2
Investment in equity measured at FYTOCI

The Financial Instituton does ot have any Investment in secuntiex of government boands

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 Julw
2023)
Amount Amount

Fouity Ins truments
Investerment in Quoted BEguity ~ -

Investerment in Unguoted Equity 1,000,000 REEARE LY
Total 10000040 1000000

Note no: 4.8.3
Information about Inves tment in Unguoted Equity

Particulars As ot 31 st Ashmdh 20K1 As ut 3150 Ashudh
(15 July 2024) ZOR0 (16 July
2023)
Aumonmt Aot
MNepal Finsoft Company Limited 100,000 | 000,000
Total L.000,000 [IITITER LY

Mide nos 4.9
Currend Tax Axsels

Advance Tax Deposited by Financml Institution less Tax Lithibties are presented below

Particulars As ot 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 Julv 2024) 080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

Current Tax Assels
Current Year Tax Assel 42167469 42712977
Current Tax Liabilitics
Current Year Income Tax Linb iliticy 6,609,171 | HHY, T
Prior Year Incomie Tox Liabilibes | 7.654.243 -
Total 17,904,055 40,883,216
Note no: 4,10

Investment Property

The Financial Institution does not have any Investment Propenty

Particulars As at st Ashadh 2081 As ul 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amaount

Investment Property measoared st Fair Value

Balance it the Beginning of the Period - -
Addinon/diposal during the vear - -
Net (Changes m Fair Valoe durng the Year

Adjustment/ Trans ter

Balance mt the End of the Period - .

Investment Property meas ured at Cost

Balance al the Beginning of the Period - -
Addmon/duposal durmp the yeor -

Net Changes in Fair Value during the Year - =
A s vment/ Trams ey - -
Balance at the End of the Period - -

Total - -

% #¢! affas ufadea 90C0/C9 >
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Intangible Assets

Cost

Balance at 31st Ashadh 2080 (16 July 2023)
Additions

Disposals/Trans fer

Cost Trans ferred From Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta
Balance at 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment

Balance at 31st Ashadh 2080 (16 July 2023)
Additions

Disposals

[mpairment for the Year

Depr Transferred From Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta
Balance at 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Net book value
Balance at 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Note no: 4.12

Coodwll Software Total
- 5.739.920 5.739.920
4458457 4458 457

- 10,198,377 10,198,377

e ———————————

- 4.807.025 4.807,025
- 670,903 670,903
- 1,463 | 463

3,056,396 3.056,396

- 8,535,787 8,535,787
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITYA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
MNoteno: 4.13
Deferred Tax Asset

Defeterred Taxis computed on the Temporury difference between the baok values of assets and liahilities and taxhase at the taxrate of
P

As at 315t Ashadh 2081 (16 July 2024) Deferred Tax Asset Deferred Tax
Amaount Amount

Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences
Loans and Advances to BFIs

Loans and Advances to Customers
Investment Properties

Investment Sccunties

Property and Equipment 953,453 -
Fmployees Defined Beneft Plan 4,426,589 -
Lease Liabilities (3,486.256) -
Provision for Cratuity - -
Other Temporary Diflerences 16,516,306

Deferred Tax Assets Trans ferred from Jalpa 9.207.828 -
Total Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences 27617920 -

Deferred Taxon Unused Tax Losses
Peferred TaxDue 1o Changes in Tax Rate

Net Deferred Tax (Asset) Eiability for the Year 27,617,920 -
Opening Deferred Tax{AssetVLinhility 4,310,804 -
Transferred Defemed Tax(Asset)/ Liability From Jalpa 9.207 828 -
Origination/( Reversal During the vear 14,099,288 -
Deterred Tax (Income ) Expense Recogmized m Statement of Profit

and Loss

Deferred Tax {Income ) Expense Recognied m Statement of Other -
Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax (Income ) Expense Recognized m Egquity

Note no: 4,14
Other Assets

Other Assets include accounts receivable, prepayments. stock of stationery, staffadvances, client protection fund, inter-branch
balances, ete.

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

Accounts Receivable 5,647,345 15408310
Staft Advances - 601,192 946
Prepayments 530,468 461 255
Fgrenses not Written off -
Inventory of Otlice Consumables 1,130,320
Inventory of Stationery |, 837,45 |B]4816
Other Asscls 1,244,769
Total 10,389,958 77977316
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4.15
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions

The Financial Institution does not have any dues to banks nnd financial mstitutions

Particulars As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amounit Amount

Bormowmgs from Banks and Financil Institutions - :
Settlement and Other Clearmys . -
Chther Payables to Banks and Financial Instiintions . -

Total - -
Note no: 4.16
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
The Financial Institution does not have any dues 1o Nepal Rastrd Bank
Particulars As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Refinance from NRB - -
Standmng Liquidity Facility . .
Lendorof Last Reson Facility [rom NRB - -
Securties Sold under Repurchase Agreements
(ther Pavables o NREB - -
Total - -
Note no: 4.17
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Fimanctal Institution does not have any derivative Fmancial Instruments
Particulars As at 3st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

Held For Trading X
Interest nte swap 2 =
Cumency swap -

Forwurd exchange contract . 2

(thers - -

Held for Risk Management -

Interest rate swap -

Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Total - -

°= 3! anfias ufadaal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
RRI0 . ¢ Note no: 4.18

Deposits from Customers
The Fmancml Institution does not hokd any mstitutional deposits, mdividunl deposits have been presented below:

Particulars As ut st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
023)
Amount Amonnt
Ins tituti onal Costomers
Term Deposits - -
Call Deposits -
Dther Deposits -
Indivicual Customers
Term Deposits
Saving Deposits 3.970.,029.974 1.347.385.857
Cther Deposits
Total 3970029974 1,347 385,857
Note no: 4.19
Borrowings
Bomowimngs from domestic and foreign banks and fmancial mstitutions s presented below:
Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As ar 31sr Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
1023)

Domestic Borrowings

Bormwmngs from Govermmment of Nepal .

Borowmgs from Domestic Licensed Institutions 6,749,330,692 4. 386,528,824
Cther Natwnal Bormowings - -
Sub-Total 6,749.330,692 4386528 824
Foreign Borrowings

Bomowmgs from Forgign Financal Institutwns - -
Borrowimgs from Multilateral Dévelopment Banks . -
Bormowings from Other Institutions -

Sub-Total > =

Total 6.749.330,692 4 186,518.824

Note no: 4.20

Provisions
Provision for Expenses have been presented below:
Particulars As at st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Aumount

Provisions for redundancy -

Provigion for restructunng

Pending legal issues and tax htigations -

Onerous Contracts -

Other Provisons - -
Total - -

% #¢! afias ufadeal 20C0/C9
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIVA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4.21
Other Liabilities

Other Lmbibties ofthe Orgamsation have been presented below

Particulars

As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As ot 3]st Ashadh

(15 Julv 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Linbdity for employees defined benelt obligations
Leave 43,596,824 13,902,353
Short Term Employee Benefits 2323497 30184, 358
Lratuity Payable 23816914 22 128499
Bills Payable 1,385,843 037,754
Accounts Pavable 410906315 3,175,753
LLP Income (or Restructured Loan - 15,784,224
Interest Payabie on Bomowmngs 20,782 636 4441068
Unpad Dividend - -
Emplovee Bonus Payahle - 32489
Amount Refundable to Members 16,691,273 11,140,384
Statutory Liabilitics 5,898,252 1,550,486
Deposit and Credit Goarantee Fund 39861491 64, 182,365
Other Lmbilitics (9,074 -
Lease Linbility under NFRS 16 109,670,699 34,586 857
COVID 19 Customer Protection Fund 11}, BAR2
Member Protection Fund 9,5H)
Credut Protection Fund - f, 584,041
Depreciation Provision Fund - -
Total 725,002,817 183,662,032
Note no; 4.21.1
Annual Leave

As ot 3ist Ashadh 2081 As at 318t Ashadh

Particulars (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at beginning of year 8,524,107 7.678359
Current Service Cost 3461.574
Past Service Cost
(Caain )/ Loss on settlements
Interest Expense 677,869 576,758
Benefit Pavments from Plan Assels
Benefit Payvments from Emplover (2.920.948) (2.423.627)

Settlement Payments from Plan Assets

Scitlement Payments from Enployer

ther (Employee Contnbution, Taxs, Bpenses)
Increase /(Decrease) due to effect of any busmess combination /
divesture / trins fer)

Increase /(Decrease) due 1o Plan comtynation
Remeasurements - Due to Demographic Assumptions
Remeasurements - Due (o Financial Assumptions
Remensurements - Due to Expenience Adjustments
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at end of vear
Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

4442719
13, 105010

27,290,331
R
3,004

3,048,202
(3,336,787}
2,981,202

8524107
850

0.27%
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITYA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

2 Change i Fair Value of Plan Asscis

As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

Particulars (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Fuir Value of Plan Assets at beginning of vear - -

[nterest Income - -
Employer Contributions - -
Employer Direct Benelfit Payments 2,920,948 2423 627
Emplover Direct Settlement Pavments - -
Benelit Payments from Plan Assets - -
Henefit Payments from Emplover (2.920,94%) (2.423,627)
Sertlement Payments from Plin Assets - -
Settlement Payments from Employer - -
Other (Employee Contrbution, Taxes, Expenses) - -
Inerense / (Decrease) due to effect of uny busmess combinution /

diviestiture / trans ler)

Increase / (Decrease) due to Plan combinution - -
Remensurements - Return on Assets (Excludmg - -
Interest Income)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of vear - -
Weighted Average Asset Allacations at the year end

Equities - -
Bonds - .
Cilts - -
[nsurmance Policies - -
Total - -

3. Change in Reimbursement Rights

As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

Particulars

Reimbursement Rights at beginning of vear - -
Remmbursement Service Cost - -
Gam' (loss) on Settlements - -
Interest Income - -
Fmployer Contributions to Rembursement Rights - -
Reimbursements to Employer - -
Increase  (Decrease) due to effect ol any business combination /

divesture [ trunsfer)

Increase / (Decrease) due to Plan combination - -
Henefits paid by the Company in Prior Year and settled by Fund

Muanager in current year

et Transfer In / (Out) (Includimg the effect ofany busmess

combmation / divesture)

Remeasurements - Return on Remmbursement Rights  (Excluding - -
Interest Income)

Heimburscement Rights at end of vear - -

¢= #¢! afias uladeal 20C0/C9
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITYA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

4. Change n Asset Ceiling/ Onerous Liability

Particulars

Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liability at beginning of vear
Interest Income

Cetm [ (Loss) on Settlements

Remeasurement - Due to Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liability

(Excluding Interest Income)
Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liability at end of vear

5. Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Particulars

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

(Cuin) / Loss on Settlements

Retmbursement Service Cost

Total Service Cost

Interest Expense on DBO

Interest (Income) on Plan Assets

Interest (Income) on Rembursement Rights

Interest Expense on (Asset Ceiling )/ Onerous Lability
Total Net Interest Cost

Remmbursement of Other Long Term Benefits

Defned Benefit Cost meluded m P& L
Remeasurements - Due to Demographic Assumptions
Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions
Remeasurements - Due to Expenence Adjustments
(Retum) on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income)
(Retum) on Rembursement Rights

Changes m Asset Cetling / Onerous Liability

Total Remeasurements in OCI

Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L and OC]
Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

As at 315t Ashadh 2081  As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
As at 31st Ashadh 2081  As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
3461374 -
(77 BG4 576,738
677,869 576,758
677.869 576,758
- 3.048.202
4440719 (3,336,787
13,105,010 2981202
21.687.172 3.269.375
9 0% R.50%
3.00% 0.2
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITYA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

3.1 Reconeilmtion of P&L Expenses

Particulars

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end ofthe year
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year
Benefits Pad

Actual Retum on Plan Assets

Expenses deducted by the Insurer

Expenses Recognizedin P & L Account

6, Amounts Recognised in Statement of Financinl Position

Particulars

Defined Benefit Obligation

Farr Value of Plan Assels

Funded Status

Effect of Asset Ceiing / Onerous Liability
Net Defined Benefit Liahility / (Asset)

7. Net Defined Benefit Liability/ {Asset) Reconciliation

Particulars

Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) at beginning of vear
Defined Beneht Cost mehided m P& L

Total Remeasurements meluded i O]

Net Transfer In / (Out) (Including the effect of any business
combination / divesture)

Amount recognized due to Plan Combinations

Employer Contributions

Employer Dhrect Benefit Payments

Emplover Direct Settlement Payments

Credit to Reimbursements

Net Defined Benefit Linbility / (Asset) at end of vear

As at 3 st Ashadh 2081  As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
023
Amount Amount
27,200,331 8,524.107
(8.524.107) (7.67T8.359)
192 948 2423627
21.687.172 2.269375

As at st Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashudh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
27.200,331 R.524 107
27.290.331 B.524.107
27.290 331 8524107

As al st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Ending Ending
N.524,107 7,678,359
21,687,172 3,269,175
2.920.548) (2,423.627)
17,290,331 8524107
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

8. Current and Non-Current Liability and Asset

As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

Particulars (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
Non-Current Assets - .
Current Liabilites 2 667 776 1.0YR 351
Non-Current Liabilities 24,622,555 7.425,756

9. Bxpencnce Adjustments on Present Value of DBO and Plan Assets
As at J1st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

S—— (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amaount Amount
(Cam) / Loss on Plan Liabtlities - .
% of Openmg Plan Liabilitics - .
Cin / (Loss ) on Plan Assets - -
% of Openmng Plan Assets NA NA

10, Summary of Fmancial & Demographic Assumptions

As at st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July

2023)
Particulars Amount Amount
Discount Rate Yo 6.8
Salary Escalation 3% 3.33%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets NA NA
Mortality Table NALM Table 2009 NALM Table 20049
Disabality Rate No explictt loadmg No explictt loading
Withdrawal Rate % 3%
Retirement Age 58 58

Average Future Service 13.37 14.25
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITYA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Sick Leawe

[. Change m Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at beginning of vear
Cumeént Service Cost

Past Service Cost

(Gam}/ Loss on settlements

Interest Expense

Benefit Pavments from Plan Assets

Benefit Pavments from Emplovet

Settlement Pavments from Plan Asseis

Settlement Payments from Employer

Other (Emplovee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)

Increase / (Dedrense) due to elffect of any busmness cofmbmation /

divesture [ transfer)

Increase / (Decrease) due to Plan combmation
Remensurements - Due to Demogmphic Assumptions
Remessurerments - Due to Fmancral Assumptions
Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at end of year
Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

2. Chonge in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

Fuir Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year
Interest Income

Emplover Contnbutions

Enmplover Direct Benefit Pavments

Emplover Direct Settlement Payments

Benefit Pavments from Plan Acsets

Benefit Payments from Employer

Settlement Payments from Plan Assets
Settlement Paviments from Employer

Other (Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)

Increase / (Decrease) due 1o effect of any busmess combmation /

divestiture / transfer)
Increase / (Decrense) due to Plan combmation

Remeasurements - Returmn on Assets (Exeludmg

Interest Income)

Fuir Value of Plan Assets at end of vear

As at 31st Ashadh 2081

Notwe 4.21.2

As at 31st Ashadh

(15 Julv 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount

5378.246 4 807 040

1,397.471 s

425017 361,036
{1.947_299) { 1.794,066)

1921, 147
2 647,074 (2083,376)

8405 984 2,166,465

16 306,493 S378.246
9.0, 8. 507
3001 0.27%

As at 31st Ashadh 2081

As at A1st Ashadh

(15 Julv 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
1.947 299 |, 794 066
{1.047 204 (1794, 066)
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIVA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

3 Chunges in Reimbursoment Rights

Particulurs

Reimbursement Rights af beginning of vear
Relmbursement Service Cost

Crind (loss ) on Settlements

Interest Income

Frplover Conttihutions to Reimbursement Rights

Rombursemenis to Employer

Increase / (Decrenke) die to ellect ol any business combination /

diviesture / tmnsfer)

Incrense / (Decrense) due to Plan combimation

Benefite pald by the Company in Prior Year and settled by Funad
Manager i current year

MNet Transfer Im s (Out) iIncluding the effect of any business
combmation / divesture)

Remonsurements - Retum on Remobusement Ruyghts (Escludmmg

Interedt [heone]

Reimbursement Rights at end of yvear

4. Change in Asset Celling / Onerous Liability

FParticulsars

Asset Celling / Onerous Lialbility at beglnning of vear
Interest Income

Cain / (Liss ) on Settlements

Remeisurenment - Due o Asscl Ceiling / Cnerous Labiliy
(e huding Interest Income )

Asset Celling [ Onerous Liability at end ol year

5. Components of Defined Benelit Cost

Particulars

Current Service Cost

Pagt Servide Uost

(Gam )/ Loss on Settlemenis

Relmbursement Service Cosi

Tl Serviee Cost

Interest Expense on DBO

Interest {Income) on Plan Assets

Interest (Income; on Remmbursement Rights

Interest Expense on {Asset Ceiling) / Onerous Linbility
Total Net Interest Cost

Reimbursement ol tiher Long Tenm Benefits

Defined Benefit Cost included in P & L.
Renwasurenents - Due to Demographe Assumpuons
Remedsurenents - Due to Finuncisl Assumplions
Reneasuremenis - Dae to Expencencee Ad justnients
(Retomj on Plan Assets (Excludmg Interest Income)
(Retum jon Reimbursement Rights

Chonges m Assecl Ceiimg / Onerous Lanbalny

Total Remeasurements in OC]

Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L and OO
DHscount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

As at 308t Ashadh 2081
(15 July 2024)

Amount

As at 305t As hadh
ZOS0 (16 Julv
2013)
Amount

As gt 3051 Ashadh 2051
(15 July 2024)

Arvoan

As af 3150 Ashudh
2080 (16 July
2023)
Aok

As ot st Ashadh 2081
(15 July 2024)

Ax wt 3 1=t As hodh
2080 (16 July

2023)
Amanini Aot
1.397.471 -
425017 3610006
1.822 488 61036
1.822 488 A61,036
= 1,921,147
247,074 (2083 376)
B,405 984 26,465
11.053,058 2004236
12875546 A6l 36
LN e e B
34 0.3,
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

5.1. Reconciliation of P & L Expenses

Particulars

Defmed Benefit Obligation at the end of the year
Defined Benefit Obhigation at the beginning of the year
Benefits Paid

Actual Retum on Plan Assets

Expenses deducted by the Insurer

Expenses Recognizedin P & L Account

6. Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

Particulars

Defined Benefit Obhgation

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status

Effect of Asset Ceiling [ Onerous Liabilty
Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset)

7. Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) reconciliation

Particulars

Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) at beginning of vear
Defmed Benefit Cost mcluded m P& L
Total Remeasurements meluded in OCT

Net Transfer In / (Our) (Including the effect of any busmess

combination / divesture)
Amount recognized due 1o Plan Combinations

Emplover Contributions

Emplover Direct Benelit Payments

Emplover Direct Settlement Payments

Credit to Remmbursements

Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) at end of vear

As at 31st Ashadh 2081

As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
1023)
Amount Amount
16,306,493 5378246
(5,378.246) (4,807 0400
|,.547,294 |, 794066
12.875.546 2365172
As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 3151 Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
16,306,493 5,378,246
16306493 5378246
16306493 5.378.246

As at 31st Ashadh 2081

As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
1023)
Amount Amount

5378.246 4.807.040

|.R22 488 361.036
11,053,058 2,004,236
(1,947,299) (1,794,066)

16306493 5,378,246
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
8. Current and Non-Current Liahility and Asset

As ot st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
Particulars 2023)
Amount Amount

Non-Cument Assets . .

Current Lbihties

Non=Cument Labilihes

Y. Experience Adjustments on Present Value ol DBO and Plan Assets

1,592,130
14,714,363 -

As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

. (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Amount Amount
{Cam) / Loss on Plan Liabilities - -
% of Opening Plan Liabilities
Cam /{Loss) on Plan Assets
% of Opening Plan Assets NA NA

10. Summary of Fmancial & Demographic Assumplions

As at st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

) (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
Particulars 2023)
Amount Amount
Mscount Rate b1 8.50%%
Salary Escalation Mo 0.27%
Expected Rate of Retum on Plan Assets NA NA

Mortahty Table

NALM Table 2009

NALM Table 2000

Disability Rate No explicit lpading No explicit loading
Withdrawal Rate W MG
Retiremaent Age 58 5%
Average Future Service 13.37 14,25

Debt Securities Issued

Note no: 4.22

Particalars As at 3lst Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)

Debt securities ssued designated as a1 far value through profit or

loss

Debt gecurities ssued at amornised cost

Total

% #¢! afias uladcal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
Note no: 4.23

Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars As at st Ashmdh 2081 Ay at 2181 Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)

Redeemable prefeence shares - -

Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (labalities component)

(Mthers -
Toial x =
Note no: 4,24
Share Capital
Detail of Equity shares is presented as follows
Particulars As ot 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 3151 Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
2023)
Chndmary Shares 628,357,337 S 366,467

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only) - -
Irredeemable Preference Shares (Eyqunty Component Only ) - -
Perpetunl Debt (Equity Component Only) - -
Total 628357337 S04,366,467

Note no: 4.24.1

Ordinary Shares

Particulars As at 3lst Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
20213)

Authorized Capital 1,000, 000,000 1,000,000, 060
Crdinary Shares of Bs. 1V Each
Issued Capital 67 1,062,986 671,062,986
Crdinary Sharex of Rs. 100 Each
Paud-Up Capnal 628,357,337 S04, 3064467
Chrdinary Shares of Rs. [ Each
Total 628,357.317 S04.360.467

Note no: 4.24.2
Ordinary Shares Ownership

Particulars As af 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024) As at 31st Ashadh
2080 (16 Julv{2023)
Fercent Amaount Percent

Damies tic ownership (Promoter)
Nepal Ghvemmend

A clpss licensed msiiutions 8.28% 52,061, 0M6
Uhher eensed mstiiutiony 2.05% 12.887.400
(nher Institutions 10093%; 68,675,675
Other 61.53%, 386,724,797 89.04%

Dimes tic ownership (Public)

Nepal Covermnment

A class Lacensed Insttutions

Chther licensed Institutions

(Other Institutions

(Mher 17.19% 08008419 10865
Foreign owners hip Promoter

Foreign Ownership Public

Total 10000, 628357337 10000 %
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
Detail of S hareholders holding more than 0.5%

As at 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024) As at 31st Ashadh
Percent Amount Percent
SHREEJANA DEVELOPMENT CENTER 6.24% 39,199,175 000K
PRABHU BANK LIMITED 4.96%, 31,192,854 7007
NEPAL WOMEN COMMUNITY SERVICE CENTER 4.60%, 20,476,500 0.00%
PRIME COMMERCIAL BANK LTD 3.32% 30,868,102 3007
BASUDEV ADHIKARI 2 21% 13,906,387 3.12%
NETRA PRASAD JOSHI 1.15% 7.255432 1.63%
SUSHILA SHAHI 1.10% 6.913.541 1.53%
POKHARA FINANCE LTD 1.03% 6.443,700 0.0
IYOTI BIKASH BANK LTD 1.03% 6,443,700 0.0
MRIGENDRA BAHADUR BIST 0967 6,046,310 |.36%
JAY BAHADUR BIST 0.96% 6046300 1.36%
BADRI K.C. 0% 5,671,428 1.27%
BHABAN BHATTA 09017, 5,671,428 0.99%;
GOURI RAJ JOSHI 0,901 5,671,428 1.27%
DIPAK PRASAD GHIMIRE 0.81%, 5,104,285 L.15%
RAJENDRA KUMAR SHARMA 0.72% 4,537,142 102%
KHIMARAJ NEUPANE 0.67% 4,232,403 0.95%
NACHONG GURUNG 0.67% 4,196,857 0.94%
LOK RAJTSHARMA 0.58% 1629714 0.81%
SHAMBHU PRASAD GHIMIRE 0.5™ 3,604,287 0.81%
KRISHNA PRASAD TIMALSENA 0.56% 3516285 0,79%
LALITA KUMARI SHAHI . - 0.68%
PRABIN PAUDYAL B . 0,68%
KRISHNA RAJ JOSHI . - . 0.64%%
UPENDRA MAHATO SUDI B - 0.64%%
KUL ACHARYA - - 0. 64%%
DR. CHETRAJ PANTA . = . 0.64t5
SHANTARAM BASNET - - 0.64%
SAPILA RAIBHANDARI . . 0.64%
RAJENDRA KUMAR NFPAL - = 0.64%
JIBA NATH LAMICHHANE . . 0.64%
SURIYA RIDZHAL - - 0 64%
RANIT KUMAR MAHATO . . 0. 64%
CHACRAPANI SAPKOTA - a 0. 58%
SARITA UPRETY = K 052%
SHADANANDA GHIMIRE - - (L3]%
RAJENDRA ADHIKARI - . 0.51%
JAGATPAL SILWAL . . 0.31%
UMAKANTA SHARMA - . 0.51%
NAVARAI MAINALI . . 0.51%
ROSHAN KUMAR POKKHAREL . . 0.51%
PRAMOD UPRETY . R 0.51%
SHISHEER KUMAR BHATTA - - 0 50%
Total 35% 219627357 42%
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
Note no: 4.25

Reserves

Followmg Reserves ure maintamed by the Finaneml Institution

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July
Retumed Eaming (52,729.184) 16,993 488
(52.729,184) 16,993 48K

Other Reserves
Statutory General Reserve 235,346,472 74,391,203
Exchange Equalisaton Reserve
Investment Adjustment Reserve -
Capital Reserve 44106301
Corporate Soctal Responsibility Reserve 2159426 2434948
Chent Protection Fund 24228 816 6,854 163
Capital Redemption Reserve - .
Regulatory Reserve 78,291 681 31,179,358
Assel Revaluation Reserve 46247681 46,247,681
Fair Value Reserve
Acturial Gam Reserve 5,951,459
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 63,643,648
Dividend Equalemtion Reserve
Deferred Tax Asset Reserve -
Spectal Reserve - -
Other Reserve 10 OO D00 -
Fmployes Traming Fund 4652083 3,605,043
Total 574.627.708 164,772,395

Statutory General Reserve

Cieneral Reserve 1s maintuined as per Regulatory Requirements, l.e. 20% of the net profit afler tax to build up the capital until the reservie lund
halance is twice the paid up sharecapital and thercafter minimum 100 of the net profit after tax. This is a restricted reserve and cannot be
transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank

Cuapital Reserve

Capital Reserve Compnises value of Fixed Assets received in Grant net off accumulated depreciation. Such reserve 15 not available for
distrubution as dividend.

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve is the regerve created ag per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent 1o 25% of
the foreign exchange gain realized on the translation of foreign currency tothe reporting currency dunng the year other than Indian Rupees,
Such reserve could not be expensed or ransterred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rustra Bank other than to set off revaluation
loss meurred, if any during the year,

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve is the reserve ereated as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Tnstitunions Act 2073 equivalent 1o 25% of
the foreign exchange gain realized on the trunslation ol foreign currency o the reporting currency during the year other than Indian Rupees,
Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without pnor approval of Nepal Rastra Bank other than to set oft revaluation
loss meurred, if any during the year,

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve is 10 be maintained as per the requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank st the book value of Investment in shares not
listed in the Stock Exchnage within two vears from date ol acquisition with an exception for investment in Nepal Finsoft Company Limited.
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes to Financial Statement

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve
The fund ereated for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocatmg profit of 1% has been presented under this account head.

Client Protection Fund

As per Clause 6,14 of Microfinance Directive, 2076 1ssued by NRB, every microfinance must allocate 1% of its profit to Chient Protection
Fumd

Regulatory Reserve

Regulitory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained carning computed as per NRB Direc-
tive No, 4.

Fair Value Reserve

Fair Valure Reserve 1s mamtaned against the valuation of Investments quoted as available for sale at fair value.

Other Reserves

Other Reserves icludes reserves for Employee Tramning Fund and Institutional Development Fund,

Note no: 4.26
Contingent Liabilities and Commitme nts

Particulars As at 3]st Ashadh 2081 As at 32nd
(15 July 2024) Ashadh 2079 (16
July 2022)

Contingent liabilities - -
Undrmwn and undisbursed facilitics - .

Capital commutment - p
Lease Commitment = .
Litigation - .
Others - .
Total . Ny

Note no: 4,27
Interest Income

[nterest Incone Includes Interest on Loans and Advances to customers and Staffs, myestment securties except on
those which are measured at faw value through profit and loss account, cash and cash equivalent, placement with bank
and financial mstitutions.

Particulars As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount
Interest on Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.253,025 2,210,480
Interest on Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Interest on Loans and Advances to Customers 925,110,439 045,014,423
Interest on Loans and Advances to Stall 5,257,744 7,605,941

Interest on Investment Secunties . .
Other Interest Income - -
Total 933,621,207 954,890,844
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4.28
Interest Expense

Interest Expenses includes mterest on borrowing and interest on deposits from customers.
Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081  As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount

Interest Expense on Customer Deposits 104,177,326 O1, 143,693
Interest on Borrowmgs from Banks and Financial Institutions 564,308,129 606,860,471
Interest on Borrowings from Nepal Rastra Bank - 6,043,657
Interest on Borrower Protection Fund 475,181 383915
Interest on Finance Lease 3,919,859 4,222 875
Other Interest Expenses - -
Total 672,880,495 708,654,611

Note no: 4.29
Fees and Commission Income

Service Fees on loans is recognised as mcome upfront, when the service 1s provided, and not spread over the tenure

of the loan
Particulars As at 3st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh

(15 . July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount
Loan Admmnistration Fee - -
Service Fee 47,118,680 62,249 351
Commitment Fees - .
Prepayment and Swap Fee - =
Rebate Income . .
Other Fees and Conmmussion Income 1,404,071 2 488 287
Total 48,522,751 64,737,634

Note no: 4.30

Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081  As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount

Brokerage - :
ATM Management Fees - .
DIYTT Swift Fees : 2
Remittance Fee and Commussion . -
Other Fees and Commssion Expense - -

Total . S
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4.27
Interest Income
Interest Income Includes Interest on Loans and Advances to customers and Staffs, investment securities except on those which
ure measured at fair value through profit and loss account, cash mnd cash equivaient, placement with bank and financial
institutions,

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount
Interest on Cash and Cash Equivalemts 3,253,025 2.210.480
Interest on Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Interest on Loans and Advances to Customers 025,110,439 045.014.423
Interest on Loans and Advances to Staft 5,257,744 T.665,941

Interest on Investment Securities - -

(Mher Interest Income . .
Total 933.621.207 954,890,844

Note no: 4,28
Interest Expense
Interest Expenses includes interest on borrowing and interest on deposits from customers.

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount

Interest Expense on Customer Dieposits 104,177,326 91,143,693
Interest on Borrowings from Banks and Financial Insttutions 564,308,129 006,860,471
Interest on Borrowings from Nepal Rastra Bank - 6,043,657
Interest on Borrower Protection Fund 475,181 383915
Interest on Finance Lease 3919859 4222 875
(nther Interest Expenses - -
Total 672,880,495 708,654,611
Note no: 4.29

Fees and Commission Income
Service Fees on loans 1s recogmised as income upfront. when the service 1s provided, and not spread over the tenure of the loan

Particulars As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount

Loan Administration Fee - -
Service Fee 47.118.680 (2,249 351
Commitment Fees = .
Prepavment and Swap Fee - .
Rebate Income - .
(Mher Fees and Commission Income 1404 071 2 488,283
Total 48,522,751 64,737,634
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4,30
Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 315t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount

Brokerage - -
ATM Management Fees . .
DD/TT Swift Fees ; .
Remittance Iee and Commission - -
Chher Fees and Commission Expense -

Total - "

Note no: 4.31
Net Trading Income

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount

Changes in Fair Value of Tradig Assets - -
(ram/Loss on Disposal of Trading Assets - -
Interest Income on Trading Assets - -
Dividend Income on Trading Assets - -
Total - .

Note no: 4.32

Other Operating Income
Particulars As at 3lst Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain - -
Fair Value Gain/Loss on Investment Property - -
Gain/Loss on Sale of Investment Property - -
Gain/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - .
Dividend Income on Equity Instruments - -
Other Operating Income - -
Total = 4
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4,33

Impairment Charged/{Reversal) for Loan and Other Losses

Loans and Advances are impaired on the basis of NRB Directive, Acerued Interest Recervable on Loan and Advances have

been considered under Loan and Advances at Amortised Cost
Particulars

Impairment Charged/(Reversal) for Loans 1o BFS

Impairment Charged/(Reversal) for Loans and Advances to Customers
Impairment Charged/{Reversal) for Financial Investment

Impairment Charged/{ Reversal) for Non Banking Assels

Impairment Charged/(Reversal) for Placement with Banks and Financial

Institutions
Imparrment Charged/(Reversal) for Propérty. Plant and Equipment

Impairment Charged/{Reversal) for Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Impairment Charged/(Reversal) for Other Assets

Impairment Charged/(Reversal) for Investment Properties

Total

Personnel Expenses
Eniployee Realted Expenses are presented in this schedule.
Particulars

As at 31st Ashadh 2081
(15 July 2024)

Amount

As at 3ist Ashadh
2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount

55,325,024

-

55,325,024

As at 3 st fi!.l].ll'l']h IUEI
(15 July 2024)

28.935401

28,935,401

Note no: 4.34

As at 31st Ashadh
2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount
Salary 89,506,747 87,924 496
Allowance 97,255,989 94,780,445
Gratuity Expense 11,782,402 10,884,220
Provident Fund |4.255 489 12,529,546
Lniform : .
Training Expenses 4.541,741 2,956,056
Leave Expenses 2.728.770 3,180,137
Medical - -
Insurance . -
Other Expenses Related 1o Staft 1,851,145 1,932,170
Provision {or Employee Bonus 332489
Total 221,982,283 214,519,559
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement
Note no: 4.35

Other Operating Expense

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 3t Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount
Rent - -
Water and Electricity 1,162,490 1,162,514
Repair and Maintenance-Building - .
Repair and Maintenance-Vehicle 243,038 1,260,328
Repair and Mamtenance-Others 756,283 R34,043
Insurance Expense 288,521 364,527
Postiage, Telephone and Communication Expense 2,474,786 2,890,649
Office Equipment and Maintenance 878,507 477.592
Travel Allowance and Expense 12,856,416 9,410,928
Printing and Stationery 3,357,295 4,238,586
Books and Periodicals - -
Advertisement and Busimess Promotion 258,889 177,570
Legal and Consutancy Service 99 95() 200,620
Charity and Donation - -
Board Meeting Allowance 822,000 842,000
Board Meeting Expense 131,329 140,744
Annyal General Meeting Expenses 298,287 287.199
External Audit Fee 565,000 452.000
Internal Audit Fee - -
Audit Expenses 213,114 380,604
Commission on Fund Transfer 2,495 2.380
Preliminary Expenses Written (FF - -
Share Issue Expenses 419407 844,807
Techincal Service Fees 4,235,225 4,512,558

Entertamment Expenses

Writien Off Expenses 1,097 834 -
Security Expenses - -
Commussien and Discount 7,102,644 10,584,441
Business Promotion Expenses - .
Membership Fee Expenses - 300,000
Registration Fees T80.810 146,750
Fuel Expenses ARR, 761 2,722,232
Guest Entertainment Expenses 28,121 63,173
Office Inasuguration Expenses - -
Transport Expenses 57,707 81,794
Expenses Related o Merger 1,942,357 -
Daily Wages 2,500 =
Closing Expenses 450,240 235,617
Other Expense 663,718 387,672
Total 41,577,724 43,010,387
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Depreciation and Amortisation

Particulars

Pepreciation on property and equipment
Deépreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets

Total

Note no: 4.36

As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 3ist Ashadh

(15 Julv 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount

21,352,536 20,612,146

670,903 13,973

22.023.438 21,516,119

Depreciation on property and equipment includes depreciation of Right of Use (ROU) Asset ereated by implementing NFRS

16 lenses amounting NPR 13.381,643.23.

Particulars

Recovery of Loan Written Off
Other Non-Operating [ncome
Total

Particulars

Loan Wrtten Off
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring

Other Non-Uperating Expense
Total

Non Operating Income

Non Operating Expense

Note no; 4.37

As at st Ashadh 2081
(15 July 2024)

Asat 31st Ashadh
2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount

Note no: 4,38

Ag at 3st Ashadh 2081
(15 July 2024)

As at 31st Ashadh
2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount
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Matribhumi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

Note no: 4.39
Income Tax Expense

Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 As at 31st Ashadh
(15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount

Current tax cxpense

Current year 5,342,658 1,889,761

Adjustment for prior vears 621,538

Deferred tax expense

Orgmation and reversal of temporary difierences - 10,508 512

Changes m 1ax rate -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - :
Total 5.964,196 12,399,273

Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit
As at 315t Ashadh 2081 As at J1st Ashadh

(15 July 2024} 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount Amount
Profit before tax 15,709,967 15,709,967
Tax amount it tax rate of 30% 4.712.99() 4 712.94()
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 4.349.121 4,349,121
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -
Add/less: Tax eftect on other lems (918,559) (918.559)
Total income tax expense 8,143,551 8,143,552

Effective tax rate 51.84% 51.84%
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5. Disclosure and Additional Information
5.1 Risk Management Framework

Risk 1s inherent in the Financial Institution's activities but is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject torisk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Financial Institution's continuing profitability and each individual within the
Financial Institution is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities, The
Institution 1s mainly exposed to;

l. Liquidity Risk

2. Interest Rate Rusk
3. Credit Risk

4. Operational Risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Financial
Institution's risk management framework. Risk Committee is responsible for overall nsk management of
the Financial Institution which includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing
pertinent macro and micro-economic level business risks that could interfere with Financial Institution's
objective and goals and whether the Financial Institution's is in substantial compliance with its internal
operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, regulatory or contractual
requirements on a continuous basts. Further, Risk Committee ensures integration of all major risk in capital
assessment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in
market conditions, products and services offered, The Financial Institution, through its training and
management standards and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive
control environment, in which all emplovees are assigned and made to understand their respective roles and
responsibilities.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the nisk that the Financial Institution will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial
commitments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the Financial Institution
may be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress
circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in addition to 1ts
core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with liquidity in mind and of
monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Financial Institution has formulated separate
liquidity risk management policy and developed internal control processes and contingency plans for
managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-
orade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Financial Institution maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily
liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Financial Institution also
has conumitted lines of credit that could be utilized to meet hquidity needs. Further, the Financial Institution
maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal Rastra Bank equal to approx. 2.64% of customer local deposits.
In accordance with the Financial Insttution's policy. the liquidity position 18 assessed and managed under a
variery of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and
specific to the Financial Institution. The most important of these is to maintain the required ratio of liquid
assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement . Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term bank
deposits and Liquid debt securities available for immediate sale.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk Includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price.
Qur exposure 1o interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Financial
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Institution focuses on risk management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by
NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The
interest rate risk1s managed within the risk tolerances and market rate rnisk set by Asset Liability Commutiee.

Credit Risk

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained
from Financial Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which
has been used by Institution, includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of
borrowers' background. business and experience. financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise
analysis efc.

Operational Risk

"Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error.

fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation,
have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. Strategic and Reputational Risks are not
covered in Operational Risk.

Effective operational risk management svstems aims to minimizing losses and customer dissatisfaction
due to failure in processes, focusing on flows in products and their design that can expose the Financial
Institution to losses due to fraud, analyzing the impact of failures in technology / system, developing plans
to meet external shocks that can adversely impact continuity in the Financial Institution's operations. The
Financial Institution has introduced a "comprehensive operational risk monitoring and reporting
framework” as well as "output checking" ar all branches covering all transactions on daily basis to
minimize operational risk.

One of the growing risks among others these days 1s Operations Risk that anses out of inefficient processes
and people inside and ouiside the Financial Institution. Asset Liability Management Comnuitee (ALCO) 1s
the management committee where operating risk. market risk and other risks are discussed, in line with ALM
Policy. Information and Technology Division in the Financial Institution reviews and checks the secunty
aspects in line with IT Policy of the Financial Institution.

All the activities are undertaken in line withthe set criteria in the Standing Instruction Manual, policies and
guidelines including Directives and circulars from central bank (the regulatory authonty). Similarly
daily functions at operations are independently reported through separate reporting line other than business
generation and credit risk where independence of checking and control 1s complied with.

5.2 Capital Requirement

The focus of capital management is to maintain a strong capital base to support the business and business
growth, and to satisfy regulatory capital requirements at all times.

Financial Institution shall disclose following information in regard of Capital Management
5.2.1 Qualitative Disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Financial Institution to develop own internal policy, procedures and
structures to manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the
risk profiles as well as strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having
good governance, etficient process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and
maintaining adequate capital.

The Financial Institution has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance
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5.2.1.1 Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy:

Tier 1 Capital and Breakdown of Its Components

Particulars

Paid-up Equity Share Capital

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Share Premium

Irredeemable Preference Share

Statutory General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Calls in Advance

Other Free Reserves

Deductions

a. Goodwill

b. Deferred Tax Assets

¢c. Investment in Shares and Securities in Excess of Limits
d. Investment to the company having financial interest
e. Fictitious assets

Amount in '000

As at 31st As at 31st
Ashadh 2081 (15 Ashadh 2080
July 2024) (16 July 2023)

Amount Amount

628,357.34 504,366.47

= =

235,346.47 74,391.20

(52,729.18) 16,993.49
4,4106.39 .
10,000.00 i
27,617.92 4,310.80

— =

f. Investment on land and building for self-use not complying the Directives of NRB - -
g. Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits . -

h. Underwriting shares not sold within stipulated time
i. Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws

Total Tier 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of Its Components

Particulars

General Loan Loss Provision

Additional loan loss provision

Hybnd capital instruments

Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt

Exchange Equalization Fund

Asset revalvation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital)
Investment adjustment Fund

Total Tier 2 Capital

- -

837.463.10 591,440.35

Amonnt in "000

As at 31st Ashadh  As at 31st Ashadh
2081 (15 July 2080 (16 July 2023)

2024)

Amount Amounnt
107.355.44 14.358.29
100,345 46 88.723.56

4 238.79 2.103.71
211,939.69 105,185.56
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Detailed Information about Subordinated Term Debts

The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated term debts.

Total Qualifving Capital
Amount in '000
As at 31st As at 31st Ashadh
Ashadh 2081 (15 2080 (16 July 2023)
July 2024)
Particulars Amount Amount
Total Tier 1 Capital 837.463.10 501.440.35
Total Tier 2 Capital 211,939.69 105.185.56
Total Qualilving Capital 1.049.402.79 696.625.92
Capital Adequacy Ratio
As at 31st Ax at 31st Ashadh
Ashadh 2081 (15 2080 (16 July 2023)
July 2024)
Particulars Amount Amount
Core Capital Ratio 6.65% 8.75%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 8.34% 10.30%

Total Qualifving Capital
Amount in "000
As at 31st Ashadh As al 31st Ashadh
2081 (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Particulars Amount Amount
Total Tier 1 Capital 837,463.10 591.440.35
Total Tier 2 Capital 197,983.63 105,185.56
Total Qualifyving Capital 1,035,446.72 696,625.92
Capital Adequacy Ratio
As at 31st Ashadh As al 31st Ashadh
2081 (15 July 2024) 2080 (16 July 2023)
Particulars Amount Amount
Core Capital Ratio 6.65% 8.75%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 8.23% 10.30%
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Ameount in

Risk Weighted Exposure "000

As at 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)  As at 31st Ashadh 2080 (16

July 2013)
Weight Amount RWA Amount RWA

Particulars o
A. On-Balance Sheet ltems
Cash Balance - 41,861.94 - 22,807.25
NRB Balance - 59,079.58 - 36,079.58
Investment i Govt, Bond - - -
Investment in Bond of NRB - - -
Loan and Advances provided against Fixed Deposit - = -
Loans Provided on Security of Government - - -
Accrued interests on Govt. bond - - - - -
Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions 20 845,782.27 169,156.45 100,443.21 20,088.64
Monev at call 20 . -
Interbank Placements 20
Investment on shares/debentures/'bonds 100 . - - -
Other Investments 100 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Loans & advances bills purchase/discount 100 12,027,987.34 12,027987.34 6,411,11354 6,411,113.54°
Deforred Tax Assets 100 27,617.92 27,617.92 . -
Fixed assets 100 219,450.01 219.450.01 117,337.07 117,337.07
Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100 10,389.96 10,389.96 77.977.33 77.977.33
Total of On-Balance Sheet Items (A) 13,233,169.01 12,455,601.68 6,766,757.98 6,627,516.58
B. Ofi-Balance Sheet Items
Off-Balance-sheet Items 100 - - - -
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 100 132,331.69 132,331.68 135,335.16 135,335.16
Total of Off-Balance Sheet Items (B) 132,331.69 132,331.69 13533516  135,335.16
Total Risk Weighted Exposure (A+B) 13,365,500.70 12,587,933.37 6,902,093.14 6,762,851.74

5.2.2 Compliance with External Requirement

The Financial Institutions has complied with Externally imposed capital requirements to which it 1s subject.

5.3 Financial Instruments
5.3.1 Classification of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The
summary of significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured,
and how income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized. The following table
analyses the carrving amounts of the financial instruments by category as defined in NAS 39,
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Particulars As at 31st Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)
Amaortized
Cost FVITOCI FVIPL Total
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 41,861,943 41,861,943
Statutory Balances and Due From NRB 59,079,575 59,079,575
Placement with Banks and Fis - .
Derivative Financial Instruments - -
Loans and Advances to BFls - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 11,371,533,616 11,371,533,616
[nvestment m unlisted securities 1.000.000 1,000,000
Other Financial Assets 915,251,800 26,420,215
Total Financial Assets 12,387,726,935 1,000,000 12,388,726,935
Financial Liabilities
Due to Customers 3,970,029,974 3,970,029,974
Other Financial Liabilities 6,749,330,692 6,749,330,692
Other Liabilities 725,002,817 725,002,817
Total Financial Liabilities 11,444,363,482 - 11,444,363,482

5.4 Segment Reporting
5.4.1 General Information
a) Factors that management used to identify the entity's reportable segments

The Financial Institution's operation 18 decentralized regionally and duly managed. However strategic and
financial policies are monitored and directed from the Head Office. The accounting policies adopted for
segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company, NFRS 8 'Segment Reporting”
and Unified Directives to Microfinance, 2077 as 1ssued by NRB.

1) Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment based on relationship to operating activities of
the segment. Revenue and Expenses which relates to the Institution as a whole and are not allocable to a
segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as "Un-allocable".

1) Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments.
Investments, tax-related assets, and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on a
reasonable basis have been disclosed as "Un-allocable",

i) Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative threshold as defined in NFRS 8 have been
aggregated under the Other Segments. Operating segments not meeting the quantitative threshold and still
considered reportable by the management have been disclosed separately. Aggregation is consistent with the
core principle of NFRS.

b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its
revenues

Each segment provides microfinance services such as loans, deposits. micro-insurance, and remittance
services to low-income families in Nepal. The above mentioned are the main source of revenue for each
reportable segment,

®= #3! A uiadcal 20C0/C9
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5.4.2 Information about profit or loss, assets, and liabilities
5.4.3 Measurement of operating segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments

Row Kishi Provisce AMadhesh Bazmati Gandaki Lumbsim Karnak Sudurpashchim
Labels Province Province Province Province Province Province

[ncome 474,112 88241 6832 12860 14,730,520.60 132939 108.73 31232007548 25,534.985.05 15.674258.02

I{:;Tu:: 45068936005 | 640458778 | 1400276031 | 12637126260 | 206880 92487 24,373 429 07 14,899 872 45

Liabnlitics 6049314801200 | 8955035448 | 21846997744 | 167099215577 | 4034316694 38 321,757.641.56 204,208,717 49

Asgety 6079 83303398 E7.61247096 18R R9E 27528 1704, 757, 70820 4,005,067 11066 2T 430 358 82 201,000 3584 62
Loan Loss

Draviting- 36,707,101 32 384,850 73 820 783 03 7 4RE 57576 17593 261 69 1 438 407 82 §87 944 60
Expensss

Emimial 12319086640 | 4.784.800.65 7 147493 | 215537 519 65 15107

4 323,190,866, 18480065 | 1167198329 8927447493 | 21553751965 1751078918 | 10.910,060.81

Interest Earnings generated while conducting business under different segments are reported under the
respective segment. Equity and tax expense are not allocated to the individual segments.
b) Nature of any difference between the measurement of reportable segments’ profits or losses and
the entity’s profit or loss before income tax: None
¢) Nature of any difference between the measurement of reportable segments™ assets and the enfify’s
assels: None
d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to defermine
reportable segments’ profit or loss and the effect, if any: None
e) Nature and Effect of any asymimetrical allocations to reportable segments: None

5.4.4 Reconciliation of reportable segment profil and loss, assets and liabilities

a) Revenne
Total Revenue from Reportable Segment | 1.032.604.163 .25 |
Other Revennes
Elimination of Infersegment Revenues
Entity’s Revenue | 1,039,604,163.25

b) Profit or Loss
Total Profit or Loss for Reportable Segment | (31,645,006)
Other Profit or Loss

Elimination of Intersegment profits
Unallocated Amounts
Entity’s Profit or Loss (31,645,006)

¢) Assets
Total Assets of Reportable Segment | 12,594,619 343
Other Assets

Unallocated Amounts -
Entity's Assets 12,504,619,343

d) Liabilities

 Total Liabilities of Reportable Segment | 12,594,619,343
Other Liabilities
Unallocated Liabilities -
Entity's Liabilities 12,594,619,343

°= #3! A uiadeal 20C0/C9
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5.5 Share Options and Share Based Payments
Not Applicable

5.6 Contingent Liabilities

a) Tax dispute:

The Company has filed self-tax assessment return to the Inland Revenue Office upto fiscal year 2079/80.
and received the tax clearance certificate for Fiscal year 2079-80 from Inland Revenue Department. There are no any tax
related disputes and no appeals have been filed.

b) Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities: None
¢) Capital Commitment: None
() Lease Commitments; None
¢) Litigations: None
f) Other Commitments (Give details): Nong

The company does not have any contingencies as on 317 Asadh 2081.

5.7 Related Parties

5.7.1 Transactions with related parties

5.7.1.1 Board Member Allowance and Facilities

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting allowance amounting NPR 1,637,000 during the fiscal year

23 Board Meetings were conducted during the fiscal year and expenses amounting NPR. 131,329 were
incurred for the meetings.Following are the board member of the company for the FY 2080/81.

Pre-merger

S.N. | Name of the directors Remarks

1. Lokraj Sharma Chairperson

2. Shambhu Prasad Ghimire Member

3. Rajesh Bhandari Member(Institutional representative)

( Upto 2081/02/30)
4. Prabin Kumar Dahal Member (Institutional representative)(
From 2081/02/31)

5. Khadananda Hamal Member

6. Santosh Pandey Member

7 Chunadevi K.C. (Khadka) Member

8. Bharat Bahadur Hamal Member

9, Santosh Pandey Member ( Resigned 2080/04/06)
Post-merger

S.N. | Name of the directors Remarks

. | Lokraj Sharma Chairperson

2. Shambhu Prasad Ghimire Member

0: #3! A uiadcal 20C0/C9
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3. Arjun Shrestha Member
4, Khadananda Hamal Member
5. | Shushma Gauram Member
6. Bimala Yogi Member
7. Bharat Bahadur Hamal Member

3.7.1.2 Loans and Advances Extended to Promoters
No Loans and Advances have been extended to promoters in the reporting period.

Compensation to Key Management Personnel

Short Term Post-

S Employee Employvment Other Long  Termination Share Based
N Particulars Benefits Benefits term benefits Benefits Pavments
I Mr. Parbat Kumar Karki (CEO 21,71,145 - - -

Mr. Ashok Kumar Acharya 284.00.00 : - :
2 (Sr.DCEOQ)
3 Mr. Sajal Khadka (DCEQ) 2,409,144.00

4,608.689 - & 3 z
Total

The liabilities for defined retirement benefit plan & leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for
the company as a whole, so the amounts pertaining to the key management personnel are not included above.

3.8 Merger and Acquisition

The institution has acquired then Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Ltd. and started joint
transaction from 27™ Ashadh 2081.

5.9 Additional Disclosures of non-consolidated entities,
Not Applicable.
S.10 Events after Reporting Date

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable or unfavorable, that occur between the balance
sheet date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for i1ssue.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent 1o the reporting date till the signing of this
Financial Statement.

Proposed Dividend: The 162th meeling of the board of directors of the Financial Institution held on 2™
Chitra 2081 has decided not to distribute dividend from retained earning of fiscal year 2080-81 .

5.11 Change in estimate
All accounting policies and practices have been applied consistently.
The entity has revised the estimates for the discount rate, salary escalation, and average future service period

of emplovees used in determining the present value of the defined benefit obligation. Except for these
changes, no other estimates were revised during the vear ending on 31st Asadh, 2081.

°= #3! A uiadcal 20C0/C9
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5.12 Taxation

Income tax payable on profits is based on the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act 2058 BS and 1s
recognized as an expense In the period in which profits arise. Income tax expense is the aggregate of the

charge to profit or loss in respect of current income tax and deferred income tax.

Current income tax is the amount of income fax payable on the taxable profit for the year determined in
accordance with the relevant tax legislation and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable i respect of

previous years. Il 1s measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current Tax Asset (Liability) relate to the current period and are measured as the netted off value of amount

to be paid to taxation authorities against advance tax paid as at 31" Asadh 2081. Tax rates and laws used

to compute the amount are 1 accordance to Income Tax Act. 2052.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Web: www.isaa.com.np
INDEPENDENT ALIDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOUDERS OF JALFA SAMUDAYIK LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Oginion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (the
Company’), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 26, 2081, Stsement of
Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Incorme, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including @ summary of
significant accounting policies.

Inour apinion, the accompanying financial statements preset Fairy, in all matesal respects, the financlal
position of the company as at Ashadh 26, 2081 and its financial performance and lis cash flows for the
year then ended in accordanee with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards {NFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepsl Standards an Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
urder those standardsare further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Staternents section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ICAN's
Hanabook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the athical requirements that are
refevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respansibibties In accordance with these requirements, We bebeve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention o note 5.8 of financial staterment which exphins about merger of then Kisan
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha limited with Jalpa Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited and now operating a5
Matr! Bhisml Laghisbitts bittiya Sanstha Limited. This financial statement is up to the date of such merger.
Owr audit oplnion Is not modified in this regard.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial staternents of the current period. Thewe matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the finandal statements as a whole, and in forming aur audit apinion thereor, and we do
not provide 3 separate opinlon an these matters. Our assessed key audit matters and how we addressed
them are outlined below:

Koy Audit Matters Talud_i_lg’s Response
I, Impalrment of Loans & Advances
However, as per Carve out on NFRS 9 provided by ICAN, | Qur  audit approach  regarding
the company has sssessed and measured impairment | impairment of bans and advances
loss on loans and advances as the higher of amount | Inchuded:
derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank | o  Examination of loans and stvances
far lean loss provisiom and amount derived as per NFRS of sample basis including recovery
9. *  Testing the design, existence and
Given the fact that the impairment of loans and operating effectiveness of internal
advances under para 63 of NAS 19 require assessment controls on  income  recognition,
of future cash flows and subsequent discounting to loan classification and impairmant
present value and impairment of loans and advances | « Testing cantrols on credit appraisal
under NRB norms require assessment of various fa . L idtocess '

—

Fage 1ol 4
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like overdue status along with other fectors Hke |e  Assessnent of contral  over
utilization of lean, whereabouts of bomowers, atc. mortgage and s caloulation
which has certain imitations regarding availability of | We comsidered the process t© be
accurate information, this s considered as key sudit | adequate.

matters.

. Information Technology _
The proparation of financial statement & highly | Dur  audit approach  regarding
dependent on various reports gencrated by Core | Information Technology included:
Banking System of cormpany. Adequate and appropriate |« Testing the design, operation and
IT controls are required to ensure that IT application effectiveness of IT control
processes the data as ewpected, Audit outcome is [«  Understanding the data input and
depende on the extent of IT controks and systems, output systern of CBS
and accordingly the above areas are determined to be |« Reyview of output reports on sample
as key audit matter basis and its validation with source

We considersd the IT systern and its
contrdl to be adequate.

Dther Information

Management i responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the financial or non-financial infarmation included in the annual report,
but does not ncude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report s
expected to be made available for owr review after the date of this auditor's repoet

Dur opmeon on the inancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with aur audit of financial statemaents, out responsibility is to read the other information
Identifind above when it becomes avalable and, in doifg so, we will consider whether the other
informalion |s materialy inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtamed in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement thersin, we are
reguired to request managemen! and those charged with govermance to correct the matenal
misststement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements
Managemant s redpondile for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal eantrol as the directors determine Is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management s responsible for assessing the company's abifity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicabie, matters related to poing concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management ¢ither intends to lguidate the company or o
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

doard of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibllities for the sudit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments as @ whole are
free from materigl misstatement, whether due to fravd or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable asy is @ high assurance, but ks not & puarantee that an

Page 1 0f 4




emﬂﬁaqﬁﬂﬁfﬂam&.

MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

N.S.A. & Bet: Ancminen

Kathmandu - 29, Nepal

ASSOCIATES Eensl.Infolinusta oo
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Web: wwwinsas.com.np

audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
pasts of these financial staternents.

AS part of an audit in accordance with NSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skeptickm throughou! the audit. We also:
1 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
s sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

i} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In arder to design audit procadures that
are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenes of the Company’s intermal control.

i) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
edtimates and related disclosures made by manage ment.

wvj Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern hasis of accounting and,
based on the awdit evidence obtained, whether @ material uncertainty exists rolated to events or
conditions thal may cast sgnificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue 3¢ a paing conearn. If we
ronclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in aur audithe's repart 16
the refated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate. to modify our
opinion. Our concusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
Howewver, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v} Cvoluate the overall presantation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactiong and dvients in a
mannes that achieves fair presentation.

Wi communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signilicant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide thoze charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with refevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we further report that:

i, We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose for our audit

4. The accounts and records of the Bank has been maintained as required by law.

M. Financial statements are in agreement with the books of acoaunt maintalned by the Bask.

iv.  The capital fufd, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of assat of the
Bank are adequate as per the Directives Bsved by Nepal Rastra Bank,

v.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us, the Board of Directors, the representative or any employes of the Bank has not acted
contrary to the provision of law refating 10 accounts nor caused direct loss or damage 1o the
Bank deliberately or acted in 3 manner that would jecpardize the interest and security of the
Bank. T kAL
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vi.  The operations of the Rank were within its jurisdiction
vil.  The Bank has not acted in a manner to jeopardize the intersst and security of the depasitors
and investors,
vili.  The Bank has a centralized cote accounting system. The details recelved from branches of the
Bank, theugh are ndependently not audited, were adequatte for the purpose of our awd|t, and
®  'We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our

examination of the book of accounts.

. ;f'r::"‘_ n df:\\_
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CA Aashesh Lamechhane

Fartner

N. 5. A K Associates,

Chartered Accountants
COPNO: 1340

UDIN  : 250316CA02008w9SFr

Place Kathmandu
Date JORYJ12/02
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year ended 26' Ashadh, 2081
1.Reporting Entity

Initally established as Srijana Development Center, Pokhara for operating microfinance program after
obtaining a license to work as a financial intermediary from Nepal Rastra Bank on 2059/05/06, it later got
registered as Jalpa Microfinance Financial Institution Linuted (Public Limited) (heremnafter referred to as
“JALPA")at the Office of the Company Registrar on 3rd Bhadra 2075, After getting registered and receiving
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank on 30th Kartik 2075 as a "D" class Financial Institution having 10 districts
working area, 1t started 1ts operation on st Chaitra 2075,

This financial institution started joint operation under the name of Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha
Limited from 16th Mangsir 2077 after the successful merger with Mahila Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Limited having its registered office at Ghorahi 15 Dang.

After the merger, with the approval of Nepal Rastra Bank, the financial institution has been transformed into a
national level "D" category financial institution. This financial institution has been established as a public

limited company with limited liability under the current Companies Act and has been conducting financial
transactions.

1.1 Financials Statements
The Financial Statement of JALPA for the year ended 26™ Asadh 2081 approved on 2™ Chitra 2081
by the Board of Directors comprises Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows,
Notes to the Financial Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.
The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements in accordance to NFRS as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063,

1.2 Principal Activifies and Operations
The principal activity of the company 1s to provide microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits,
Microinsurance and related Services to low-income families of Nepal.

2. Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements of the Institution have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of format
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No.4 of Unified NRB Directives, 2079 for Micro-finance Institutions.

The Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement

of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of changes in Equity. the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Notes to Financial Statements.

2.1  Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board
(ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the
format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives,2079 for Micro-finance

Institutions. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity. the

Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.
2.2 Reporting Period and approval of Financial Statements Reporting Period

The Institution follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar. The institution
has prepared the financial statements that comply with NERS applicable for the peried ending on or
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after 26th Ashadh 2081, together with the comparative period data as at and for the period ending 31
Ashadh 2080 as described n 1ts accounting policies.

Approval of Financial Statements

The accompanied Financial Statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its board

meeting held on 2 Chitra 2081 and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in Annual
General Meeting.

2.3  Functional and Presentation Currency

Financial Statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees. which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Institufion.

24  Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgements

The Financial Statements of the Institution have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except
the cash flow information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using direct method. The Financial
Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Institution 18 required to apply the accounting policies that are most appropnate for the
circumstance and operating environment. NFRS requires the Institution to exercise judgement in
making choice of specific accounting policies and accounting estimates. The Institution, while
complying with the reporting standards, makes crihcal accounting judgment as having potentially
material impact on the financial statements. Description of such estimates and significant accounting
policies has been given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied. These policies are
consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed
specifically. The underlying assumption made while making accounting estimates are penodically
reviewed and such revision are recognized in the period in which the estimates is revised and are applied

prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been included in the relevant section of the notes
whenever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting
estimates, if any.

2.5  Changes in accounting Policies

The same accounting policies are normally adopted mn each period and from one period to the next to
maintain the compatibility of the Financial Statements of the entity over time to identify trends in the
financial position, performance and cash flows, however the changes when required by NFRS or due

the requirement that results in the financial statements providing more reliable and more relevant
information about the effects of transaction, other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position.
financial performance or cash flows are made and the changes are applied retrospectively. An entity
has use the same accounting policies in its opening NFRS Statement of financial position and

throughout all periods presented in 1ts first NFRS financial statements. Those accounting policies have
complied with each NFRS effective at the end of its first NFRS reporting period except those
specifically stated under relevant notes below.

2.6  New Standards in issue but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and mterpretations have been
issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS,

NFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ has been imade applicable by Accounting Standard Board however,
the company has opted for carve out provided by ICAN 1n this regard.

Expected Credit Loss Model (ECL) of Impairment

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model 1s a forward-looking model. The ECL estimates are unbiased,
probability-weighted. and include supportable information about past events, current conditions, and
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forecasts of future economic conditions.

Under the general approach, NFRS 9 recognizes three stage approach to measure expected credit
losses and recognized interest income.

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - No significantly increased credit risk financial mstruments that have not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition require, at initial recognition a provision
for ECL associated with the probabulity of default events occurring within the next 12 months (12-
month ECL). For those financial assets with a remaining maturity of less than 12 months, a Probability
of Default (PD) is used that corresponds to the remaining maturity. Interest will be calculated on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset before adjusting for ECL

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — Significantly increased credit risk in the event of a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a provision is required for the lifetime ECL representing losses
over the life of the financial mstrument (lifetime ECL). Interest income will continue to be
recognized on a gross basis.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - Defaulted Financial instruments that move into Stage 3 once credit
impaired and purchases of credit impaired assets will require a lifetime provision. Interest income
will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset less ECL.

’ Others amendments in existing standards and interpretations issued by LASB are not
applicable as those are made effective by ICAN,

2.7 New Standard and Interpretation not adopted

The financial statement which 1s prepared in compliance with all the standards that are issued and

adopted by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal except NFRS 9 in respect of Expected Credit Loss
Model.

2.8 Discounting

The institution determines amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability using the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts throughout the expected life of a financial asset or a financial Liability to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or liability. If expected life cannot be determined reliably. then the
contractual life is used.

In case where the institution assesses that the transaction amount of a financial asset or a financial
liability does not represent its fair value, the related future cash flows are discounted at prevailing
interest rate to determine the mitial fair value.

2.9 Offsetiing

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position. only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss. unless required or permitted by
Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC)) and as
specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Institution.

2.10  Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitied by the
Nepal Accounting Standard — NAS | on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’,

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the under
standability and comparability of Financial Statements of the Instifution. Understandability of the
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Financial Statements 1s not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial
information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.

2.11 Limitation of NERS Implementation

If the information is not available and the cost would exceed the benefil derived, such exception to
NFRS Implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section,

3. Significant accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by the Institution in the preparation of these financial statements are
presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items
in the statement of financial position:

+ Investment property 1s measured initially at cost and subsequently at Fair value.
« Liabilities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fair value.
+ Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.

» Net defined benefit liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefit obligations less total plan
assets,

» Impairment of financial asset 1s measured at fair value and related disposal cost.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, Actual results could differ from those estumates. The estimates and judgements
used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Institution, Any
revisions to accounting estimares are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed 1n notes.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NFRS | - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items
1s presented separately in the financial Statements, Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented
separately unless they are material. Such presentation of line items 1s consistent with the format 15sued
by NRB.

32 Basis of consolidation

The Microfinance does not have any subsidiaries or special purpose entities over which 1t exercises
control. Hence, only standalone financial statement is prepared.

33 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at vault, balances with other bank & finance institutions,
money at call and short notice which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value including

interest receivable on investment with maturity up to 3 month or less, Cash and Cash equivalent are
measured at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method’ in accordance with NAS 07-
Statement of Cash Flows.
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34 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition

The Institution initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial
position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
Institution imbally recognize loans and advances, deposits; and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities
issued on the date that they are originated which is the date that the Institution becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture,
Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized
on trade date at which the Institution commits to purchase’ acquire the financial assets. Regular purchase
and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All financial assets and liabilities are initially
recognized at their cost value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the respective
classification.

Classification
I Financial Assets

The Institution classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value
on the basis of the Institution’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash tlow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

1. Financial assels measured at amortized cost

The Institution classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

a) The asset 1s held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured al fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

a) Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are
held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized
mn profit or loss as incurred. Such assefs are subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

bl Financial assels al fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment 1n an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, the Institution makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes
in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are
classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

1. Financial Liabilities

The Institution classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

aj Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held
for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost 15 directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value 1s recognized at profit or loss,

h) Financial liabilities measnred af amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Measurement

Financial assets at F1'TOCI

On initial recognition, the Institution can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis)
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income periaining fo investments in
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
‘Fair Value Reserve’, The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal
of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

« It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

* Oninitial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« It is a derivative that 1s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
Institution’s right to receive the dividends 1s established, it 1s probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
invesiment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

[nvestments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Institution irrevocably elects on

initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments
in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a

measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing
the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on financial assets at
FVTPL is recognized when the Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery
of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated as
at FVTPL.
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A financial hiability 1s classified as held for trading if:

» It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

* On inmitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or It s a derivative that 1s
not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A hinancial liability other than a inancial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition 1if:

« Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise.

» The financial liability forms part of a company of {inancial assets or [inancial liabilities or both, which is
managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company 1s provided
internally on that basis; or

« It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the *Other income® line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial hiabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial Lability that 1s attributable to changes in the credit risk of that Lability 1s
recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in
which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining
amount of change in the fair value of Liability is always recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are
reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense
that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the *Finance Expenses’ line item.

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial hability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
De-recognition

i.  De-recognition of financiai assels

The Institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
[inancial asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Institution neither

transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain conirol of
the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained
by the Institution 1s recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of

°= #3! afias uiadcal 20C0/C9




amﬂaﬁﬁlaﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬂmﬂf-’a‘lﬁ‘l.

MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

(1) The consideration received and

(1) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
recognized in refained earnings.

The Institution enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of
Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assefs or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred
assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards
include, for example repurchase transactions,

ii.  De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability 1s derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substanually modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid 1s
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Lability (exit price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Institution has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When available, the Institution measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price
in an active market, then the Institution uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable
mputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the
factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments, The inputs are not based on
observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction
price i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Institution determines that the fair value at
mitial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value 1s evidenced neither by a quoted price in
an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that

uses only data from observable markets (Level 02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured
at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction
price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized m profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the
instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction
is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability (Level 01 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair value is recognized in profit
or loss immediately.
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Impairment

At each reporting date, the Institution assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can
be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or 1ssuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Institution on terms
that the Institution would not otherwise consider. indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankrupicy,
the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such
as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Institution considers to restructure loans rather than take
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment 1s measured using the EIR method and the
loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all
criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual
or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Institution considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both
specific asset and collective level. The Institution first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant and that are not individually significant
are assessed on collectively,

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrving amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the

impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and advances portiolios are based on the judgments in past experience of portiolio behavior.
In assessing collective impairment, the Institution uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred. adjusted for management's judgment as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by
lustorical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked
against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there 1s no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Institution. If in a subsequent vear,
the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss 15 increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘Non-operating income”.

3.5  Property and Equipment
a) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recogmzed if it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the
assets will flow to the Institution and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes

expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets
includes followings:
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» Cost of materials and direct labor;

« Any other cost directly atiributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended
use: and

« Capitalized borrowing cost

Propertv and equipment are measured at cost (for land using deemed cost at on the (ransition date) less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Neither class of the property and
equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

b) Grant Assels.

The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital
reserve of equal amount. The annual depreciation 1s deducted every vear from this reserve till the useful
life of assets. The balance of capital reserve depicts Written down Value of the Grant Assets.

¢) Depreciation
Property and equipment’s are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property on
Diminishing Balance method over estimated useful lives as determined by the Management. Depreciation
15 recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of depreciation 1s ceased from the earlier
of the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current vear and comparative
eriods are as follows:

PPE Expected Life
Electronic Items 4
Inverter Batteries 5
Computer, Printers, Scanner, Routers 8
Refrigerator, Ac 10
Bakery Tools 10
Furniture and Fixture 2
Four Wheeler 13
Two Wheeler 8
Safe Vault 20
Building 50

3.6
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Assets costing less than NPR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Goodwill and Intangible Asset

3.6.1 Goodwill
Goodwill arising out of acquisition is initially measured at cost. Goodwill i1s measured at the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred taken together with the amount
recognized for any non-controlling interests and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.Subsequent to nital recognition, goodwill 1s
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. There is no any Goodwill on the reporting
date.

3.6.2 Intangible Asset
Intangible assets are 1dentifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, which are held
for and used in the provision of services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An
intangible asset appearing in the Entity's Financial statement 1s computer software. Entity applies
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NAS 38 — “Intangible Assets” in accouniing for its intangible assets. Entity recognizes an

intangible asset when: -

L. the cost of the asset can be measured reliably; -

2. there is control over the asset as a result of past events (for example, purchase or self-

creation); and

3. future economic benefits (inflows of cash or other assets) are expected from the asset.

Intangibles can be acquired by separate purchase: as part of a business combination; by a
government grant; by exchange of assets; or by self-creation (internal generation). Intangible
assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently these are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

3.6.3 Intangible Asset with indefinite useful lives

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the Cash Generating Unit level as appropriate, when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value is impaired. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the ‘indefinite life assessment’
continues to remain valid. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
1s made on a prospective basis. At the reporting date the Entity does not have intangible assets

with indefinite useful hives

3.6.4 De-recognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are de-recognized on disposal or when future economic benefits are no more
expected from their use. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceed and the carrying amount of the asset.

Such a gain or loss 1s recognized in profit or loss.
3.6.5 Ammortization and impairment of intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or infinite. Except for goodwill

other intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss
from the date when the asset is available for use, over the estimated useful economic life.

Class of Intangible Assets

Estimated Useful Life

Software

Up to 5 years

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognized as an
expense by the Group in previous annual financial statements or interim financial statements are
not recognized as part of the cost of an intangible asset later. Amortization methods. useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate

3.7 Investment Properties

The company has adopted to account for investment property as per the requirement of NAS 40.

3.8 Income tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets 1s dependent upon the
generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax law
carry-forwards become deductible. The Institution considers the expected reversal of deferred tax
liabilities and projected future taxable income making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax
assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable

income during the carry-forward period are reduced.
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized In the statement of
profit and loss except to the extent it relates to iems directly recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income,

Crurrent Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

Current income tax assets and hiabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected fo
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Current income tax assets and liabilities also
include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date and that are expected to apply when the related deferrad tax asset is realized or the deferred tax
liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reversed if it 1s no longer
probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Institution expects, at the reporfing date,
to recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred 1ax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized except:

1. Where the deferred tax assel relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and. at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

1i. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Delferred tax relating to items recognized in

OCT 1s recognized in OCI. Deferred tax 1tems are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current fax assefs against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

3.9  Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Institution's deposits consist of money placed into the Institution by its customers. These deposits are
made to deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings accounts, margin deposit accounts,
call deposit accounts and current accounts. Details and further disclosures about deposits have been
expldined in Note that follows,

310  Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and when (he amount can be reliably estimated,
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The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities 1s made where there is:
. a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the entity; or

. present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

. It 1s not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; or

. The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

. A contingent asset i1s a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will

be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commuission, disposal income etc. Revenue is
recognized to the extent it i1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Institution and the
revenue can be reliably measured. The Institution applies NAS 18- “Revenue” in the accounting of
revenue, unless otherwise stated. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability
of income is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition are as below:

Interest income

« Interest income are recognized under accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in the profit
or loss for all interest-bearing financial assets except loans categorized as bad loan measured at amortized
cost. Effective Interest Rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash
payments through the expected life of financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Effective Interest Rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating the interest income over the relevant period.

* The Institution has adopted the alternative treatment as provided by the Carve Out in NFRS
implementation as explained in Note 2. As a result, it has not included all fees paid or received,

considering it to be immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably for calculating effective interest
rate.

+ Interest income presented in statement of profit and loss includes:

« Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate
method. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff loans, investment in
government securities and deposit instruments efc.

« Interest on investment securities measured at fair value, calculated on effective interest rate.

+ Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the
period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

NFRS Requirement

» NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those
classified at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method s a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the expected life of the
financial instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, when approprate, a shorter
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period, to the net carrving amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The effective interest rate is
calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by estimating the future cash flows after

considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes
all

« amounts expected to be paid or received by the Institution including expected early redemption fees and
related penalues and premiums and discounts that are an integral part of the overall return. Direct
incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, 1ssue or disposal of financial instruments 1s also
taken into account in the calculation. Once financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
wrilten down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income 1s recognized using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss

Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Institution has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit on
individual products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the Institution charges
on the loans and advances (which is in negligible figure), applying ETR method would not be practical and
cost effective. Hence, initial service fees and renewal charges have been recognized during the period when
such income accrue rather than being included within the comporent of interest income under EIR method.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included
in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee,
service charges are recognized as the related services are performed.

Dividend income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is
established. Dividend incomes are presented in other operating income, net income from other financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification of
the equity instruments.

Net trading income
Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by
management upon initial recognition. Management may onlv designate an instrument at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

» The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

« The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

« The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives. which significantly modify the
cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement
of financial position at fair value, Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss on financial assets
and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in statement of Profit or Loss.
Interest earned or incurred 1s accrued 1n Interest income or Interest expense, respectively, using the
effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in other operating income when the right
to the payment has been established.
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3.12 Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using
effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to
the Institution’s trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of
trading assets and lLiabilities in net trading income.

3.13 Employees Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term emplovee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service 1s provided. A liability 1s also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus
required by the prevailing Bonus Act pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period):

« wages, salaries and social security contributions,
« paid annual leave and paid sick leave: non-monetary benefits

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a fixed
contribution to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expense in profit
or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered by employees. Pre-paid contributions
are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in future payments is available,
Contributions to a defined contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employee render the service are discounted at their present value. The following are the
detined contribution plan provided by the Institution to its employees:

a) Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Institution are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Institution contribute monthly at a
pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grades). Instifution does not assume any future
liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution. Such benefit is provided to the
employee through Social Security Fund.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

The institution provides Gratuity Plan and Leave Encashment Plan (in terms of Annual Leave and Sick
Leave) as defined benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-employment benefit plans and are
paid based on length of service. These benefit plans are funded whereas the Institution makes earmark
investment of these funds. The gramity plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at
retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent
defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.

Further, employees of the Institution are entitled to avail Annual Leave and Sick Leave. The employees
can carry forward the un-availed leave and are entitled to encash the cumulative leave al the tume of the

retirement. The obligation under these plans are calculated by a qualified actuary every year using
projected unift credit method.

The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Institution to its employees:
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a) Gratuity

Instimution provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee
Service Bvelaws of the Institution. Such benefit is provided to the emplovee through Social Security Fund.

b) Leave Salary

The employees of the Institution are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed / unutilized leave
subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed/ vnutilized leave partially in terms of
Employee Service Byelaws of the Institution. The Instutution accounts for the Lability for accumulated
leave as per the actuarial valuation.

c) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Institution is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibulity of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termunation benefits are recognmized if the
Institutions made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the
number of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months after
the reporting date, they are discounted to their present value.

Staff Loan: The microfinance provides staff loan as per staff loan bylaws. The staff loan are shown at
fair value in the financial statements considering the 10% market interest rate.

3.14 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 1s (or contains) a lease 1s based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even 1f that right 1s not explicitly specified in an arrangement. The company's lease
mainly comprises of buildings . The company leases building for operational purposes.

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of the contract. The
assessment involves the exercise of judgement about whether it depends on a specified asset, whether
the Company contains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset, and whether the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset 15 initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any tmtial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the nght-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets an determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease hability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses an incremental borrowing rate specific to the company, term and
currency of the contract, Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include fixed payments, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate known at the commencement date; and extension option
payments or purchase options which the Company 1s reasonably certain to exercise.

Variable lease payments that don't depend on an index or rate are not included 1n the measurement of the
lease liability and the ROU asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in
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which the event or condition that triggers those pavments occur and are included in the line "other
expense" In the statement of profit or loss.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities i1s increased to reflect the accretion of

interest and reduced for the lease pavments made and remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to
the related ROU asset) when there is a change in future lease payments in case of renegotiation, changes
of an index or rate or in case of reassessment of options. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assefs

The company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
as well as low-value assets and recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.13 Share capital and reserves

The Institution classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in accordance
with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest 1n
total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the
Institution and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equuty.

The Institution is required to maintain the capital adequacy ratio imposed by the regulator.
Incremental costs directly attributable to 1ssue of an equity mstruments are deducted from the equity.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, exchange
equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, fair value reserve, revaluation reserve and other reserves.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained
earning computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

3.14 Earnings per share including diluted

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share 1s computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any afttributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been 1ssued at a later date.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the
reporting date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the
restatement of earnings per share.

3.15 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Institution that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with
any of the Institution's other components, whose operating results are reviewed by the management to
make decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess 1ts performance.
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Financial Position

As on 26th Ashad 2081
Assets Note 26 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080
Cash and Cash equivalent 4.1 568,536,169 483,068,313
Statutory Balance and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 23,000,000 23,000,000
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 43 75,000,000 67,500,000
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 -
Loan and Advances to MFis and Cooperatives 4.6 s -
Loan and Advances to Customers 4.7 4,805,315,791 4,287,462,893
Investment Securities 48 -
Current Tax Assets 4.9 13,780,250
Investment Property 4.10 -
Property and Equipment 4.11 114,841,969 136,077,935
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.12 1,402,061 1,611,033
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 9,207,828 62,484,921
Other Assets 4.14 5,893,928 4,306,731
Total Assets 5,603,197,747 5,079,292,077
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 1,871,047,296 1,371,298,772
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.17
Deposits From Customers 4.18 2,734,213,774 2,661,110,068
Borrowing 4.19 -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 1,266,512 -
Provisions 4.20
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13
Other Liabilities 4.21 469,765,422 464,218,988
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 -
Total Liabilities 5,076,293,004 4,496,627,828
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 182,800,000 182,800,000
Share Premium
Retained Earning 40,315,740 58,302,676
Reserves 4.25 303,789,003 341,561,574
Total Equity 526,904,743 582,664,250
Total Liabilities and Equity 5,603,197,747 5,079,292,077
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26
Net Assets Value Per Share 288.24 318.74
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
(0.00) (0.00)
Diwas Dhokoal Laxoi Prasad Shamma Prudbumana Kumar Bhatturm Bunola Yo Sushmu Gantam
Assistant General Manoger  Chief Executive Officer independent Director Director [hrector
Arjun Shresthan Bharat Bahadur Hamal Shambhu Prasad Ghimire Lok Raj Sharma  CA. Aashish Lamiichhane
Director Public Director [Mirector Chatrman NAA & Associales
o 208112400 Chartered Accountat

@: #3! A uladcal 20C0/C9



emﬂﬁa&ﬁaﬁeﬁawm

MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the period Shrawan 01, 2080 to Ashad 26, 2081

Particular

Note

2080-81

2079-80

Interest Income 4.27 657,028,336 750,823,766
interest Expense 4.28 415,127,084 436,380,915
Net Interest Income 241,901,253 314,442,851
Feesand Commission Income 4.29 71,163,821 46,101,751
Fees and Commission Expense 4.30
Net Fee and Commission Income 71,163,821 46,101,751
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 313,065,074 360,544,602
Net Trading Income 431
Other Operating Income 4.32 18,131,597 11,467,507
Total Operating Income 331,156,670 372,012,109
Impairment Charge/({reversal) for loans and Other Losses 4.33 42,845,264 147,242,216
Net Operating Income 288,251,407 224,769,893
Operating Expense 292,976,318 326,675,695
Personnel Expenses 434 221,311,513 246,527,714
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 44, 880,126 52,516,859
Depreciation and Amortization 4.36 26,784,679 27,631,122
Operating Profit (4,724,912) (101,905,802)
Non Operating Income 4.37
Non Operating Expenses 4 38
Profit before Income Tax (9,724,912} (101,905,802)
Income Tax Expenses 4,39 64,950,906 (57,745,068)
Current Tax 15,935,293 1,942,038
Deferred Tax 49,014,613 (59,687,107)
Profit for the Year (69,675,817) (44,160,735)
Profit atiributable to: | |
Equity holders of the Financial Institution (69,675,817) (44,160,735)
Profit for the Year (69,675,817 (44,160,735)
Earning Per Share
Basic Earning Per Share (38.12) (24.16)
Diluted earning Per Share (38.12) (24.16)
The accompanying notes form an Integral part of these Financlal Skatements. As per our separate report annexed

Diwas Dhukal Laxmi Prasad Sharma Prudbhumana Kumor Bhattura Bumala Yo Sushmu Gaptam

Assistant General Manager  Chief Executive Officer independent Director Director Darector
Arjun Shrestha Bharat Bahodur Humal Shambhu Prasad Ghimire Lok Ray Sharman €A, Aashish Lamichhane
Director Public Director DMirector Chatrman NSA & Associales
it 20811200 Chariered Accountat
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the period Shrawan 01, 2080 to Ashad 26, 2081
(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars 26 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080
Retained Earning of previous year available for distribution 58,302,676 156,454,166
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss (69,675,817) (44,160,735)
Appropriations:

a. General reserve . -
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

c. capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate soclal responsibility fund - -
e. Employee's training fund

f. Client protection fund - -

g. Other -
Adjustment in Retained Earnings (345,306
Restructure & Reschedule Reserve Created 2,606,312 22,146,418

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment (14,069,454) 90,492,320

Regulatory adjustment : 54,385,193 (32,189,644)

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accured interest received (+) 1,108,100 25,172,894

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-}/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal{+)

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)

e, Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/reversal (+) 53,277,093 (56,972,373)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain Purchase gain recognized (-)/ reversal (+)

h. Acturial loss recognized(-)/reversal(+) (390,165)
I. Other{+/-)
Distibutable Profit or (loss) 40,315,740 58,302,676

As per our separate report anhexed

Diwas Dhukal Laxmmi Prasad Sharma Prndhumana Kumuar Bhatturai Bimala Yo Sushmu Gautam
Assistant General Manager  Chiefl Executive Officer Independent Director Director Darector
Arjun Shrestha Bharat Bahodur Homal Shambhu Prasad Ghimire Lok Ha) Shartin CAL Aashish Lamichhiane
Director Public Director [Mirector Chatrman NSA & Associales

Charlered Accountat

Drie: 2081-12-02
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MATRIBEHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the period Shrawan 01, 2080 to Ashad 26, 2081

Note 26 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080

Profit for the Year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Gain/(Losses) from investment in
equity instruments measured at fair value
Gain/(Losses) on Revaluation

(69,675,817)  (44,160,735)

Acturial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 14,208,268 9,049,113

Income tax relating to above items (4,262 480) (2,714, 734)

Net othe Comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to Profit or loss 9,945,788 6,334,379
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/{losses) (arising from

translating financial assets or foreign operation)

Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to Profit or loss

Net othe Comprehensive income that are or

may be reclassified to Profit or loss = =

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 9,945,788 6,334,379

Total comprehensive income for the year

(59,730,030) - 37,826,356

Total comprehensive income for the Period

(59.730,030) - 37,826,356

Diwas Dhukal Laxmi Prasad Shanma Prodhumana Kumar Bhuttura
Assistant General Manager  Chiefl Executive Officer Independent Director
Arjun Shrestha Bharat Bahodur Homal Shambhu Prasad Ghimire
Director Public Dhrector Mirector

Drie: 2081-12-02

As per our separate report annexed

Bumala Yo Sushmu Gautam
Director [Dhrector

Lok Ha) Shartin CAL Aashish Lamichhiane
Chnirman NSA & Associiles
Charfered Accountat
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Statement of Cash Flows
Forthe pariod Shrawan 01, 2080 to Ashad 26, 2081

Particulars 26 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 697.167.601 746,576,367

Fess and other Income recsivad 71,163,821 46,101,751

Dividend recelved . .

Receipts from other aperating acthivities 18,131 597 11,467,507

Interest Paid (373,955,063) {396,454,751)

Cammission and fees paid . .

Cash paymanisto employaes (214,972,952 (247,033,024)

Other axpense paid 167,354,132) (110,177,435)

Operating cash flow before changes in operating assets and liabilites 130,180,867 50,480,414

(Increase)/{Decraase |n operating assats (602,524,624) 541,357,818

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Placeameant with bank and fimancial institutions

Other trading assets

l.oan and advances to bank and financial insttutions - -

Loan and advances to Customears (00,937 427 £39,019,939

Other assels (1,587,197) 2,337.880

Increase f/{Decrease) in operating liabilities 564,650,729 (419,042,823)

Due to bank and financial institulons 491,547.023 (521,692,186)

Due 1o Nepal Rastra Bank -

Deposits from customers 73,103,706 102,849,362

Borrowings -

Other liabilities -

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 92,306,972 272,795,409

Income taxes pald (889,531] [5,524,089)

Net cash flow from Operati ng activities 51,417,441 267,271,321

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Investment securities

Recelpts fro sales of investmeant securities

Purchase of property and egulpment (4,802,591} {7, 725,839)

Recmipt from sale of property and eqgulpment

Purchase of Intangible assets (536, 750] [67.B00)

Recaipts from the cale of Intangible assets

Purchase of Investment properties

Receipt form the sale of investment proparties

Interest received

Dividend recgived ’

Net cash usesd in investing activities (5,339,741) (7,793,639}

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Recaipt form issue of debt securities

Repayment of dabt secutities

Receipt from Issue of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares 22,800,000

Dividends paid - (24,000, 000)

Interest paid _

Other recaipts/payment {609, 845) (484, 275)

Net cash from financing activities {609,845) (1,694,275)

Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 85,467,856 257,783,406

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 483,068, 313 225,284,907

Efects of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 568,536,169 483,068,313
(0} (0}

Diwus Dhukal Luxnu Prasad Sharma Pradbhumana Kumar Bhatturu
Indepéndent Director

Assistant General Noannger Chief Executive Oficer

Arpun Shrestha Bharot Babadur Homal

[ate: 20811242

Shambhy Prasad Ghamire
Director Publiec Director Directior

As per our separate report annexed

Bimula Yogi
[Dhrector

Sushma Gautum

[irector

Lok Rap Sharma CAL Apshish Lamichhane

Chairman

NSA & Assoriates
Charteted Accountat

% #¢! afias ufadcal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement

As on 26th Ashad 2081
4.1 Cash and Cash equivalent
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Cash in hand 9,712,553 15,129,378
Balances with B/Fis 558,823,616 467,938,935
Money at call and short notice
Other
Total 568,536,169 483,068,313
4.2 Statutory Balance and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Statutory balances with NRB 23,000,000 23,000,000.00
Statutory balances with BFls
Securities purchased under resale agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB
Total 23,000,000 23,000,000
4.3 Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Placements with domestic Fis 75,000,000 67,500,000
Less : Allowances for impairment
Total 75,000,000 67,500,000
4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total

% #¢! afias ufadcal 20C0/C9
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MATRIEHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement

As on 26th Ashad 2081

4.5 Other Trading Assets

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Treasury bills
Government bond

NRB Bond

Domestic Corporate bond
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

4.6 Loan and Advances to MFis and Cooperatives

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Loans to microfinance institutons
Loan to Fls

Loan to cooperative

Less : allowance forimparment
Other

Less : Allowances for impairment

Total

4.6.1: Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/Reversal
Amount written off

Total

4.7 Loan and Advances to Customers

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost
Less : Impairment allowances

Collective impairment

Individual impairment

Net amount

Loan and advance measured at FVTPL

5,182,417,328

(377,101,536)
4,805,315,791

4,621,619,166

(334,156,273)
4,287,462,893

Total

4,805,315,791

4,287,462,893

% #¢! afias ufadeal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances-By Product

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Product

Term loans

Short term, term loan
Long term, term loan
Hire purchase loans
Personal Residential loan
Staff loans

others

20,992,676
5,158, 760,252

8,378,822
4,570,436,679

Subtotal

5,179,752,929

4,578,815,502

Interest receivable

2,664,399

42,803,664

Grand total

5,182,417,328

4,621,619,166

4.7.2: Analysis of Loan and Advances-By Collateral

Particulars

2080-81

20739-80

Secured

Movable/immovable assets

Gold and silver

Guarantee of domestic B/Fis
Government Guarantee

Guarantee of International Rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Government securities
Counter Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

Other collateral

Subtotal

Unsecured

Grand Total

4.7.3: Allowances for impairment

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs

other movement

Balance at Ashadh end

Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year
Charge/(reversal) for the year

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

334,156,273
42,945,264

377,101,536

334,156,273
147,242,216

334,156,273 |

Total allowances for impairment

377,101,536

334,156,273

% #3! afias ufadeal 20C0/C9
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement
As on 26th Ashad 2081
4.8 Investment Securities

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Investment Securities measured at amortized cost -
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI -

Total -

4.8.1 : Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Debt Securities -
Government bonds -
Government treasury bills -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments -
Other -
Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total -

4.8.2 : Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities -
Unquoted equity securities .

Total -
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement

4.9 Current Tax Assets

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Current tax assets 8,342,940 13,780,250
Current year income tax assets 8,342 940 13,780,250
Tax assets of prior periods

Current year income tax liabilities 9,609,452 -
Current Year Income Tax Liabilities 9,609,452

Tax liabilities of prior periods

Total (1,266,512) 13,780,250
4.10 Investment Property

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance ason Shrawan 1,.....oecvvvvinrnnns
Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net Amount

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1,.............

Additional/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Accumuleted depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement

As on 26th Ashad 2081
4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
- : Software Total Total
g Sootl rehased | Developed | Other| Ashadh 26 2081| Ashadh 2080
Cost
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 3,876,810 3,876,810 | 2,893,710
Addition during the Year 67,800 . 67,800 983,100
Acquisition 67,800 67,800 083,100
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Ashad end 2080 3,944,610 - 3,944,610 | 3,876,810
Addition during the Year 536,750 - 536,750 67,800
Acquisition 536,750 536,750 67,800
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Ashad 26 2081 4,481,360 - 4,481,360 | 3,944,610
Amortization and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 1,639,931 1,639,931 959,844
Amartization charge for the Year 693,647 693,647 680,087
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment
As on Ashad end 2080 2,333,577 - 2,333,577 | 1,639,931
Amortization charge for the Year 745,722 745,722 693,647
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment
As on Ashad 26 2081 3,079,299 - 3,079,299 | 2,333,577
Capital Work in Progress Net Book value
As on Ashad end 2079 2,236,880 - 2,236,880 | 1,933,866
As on Ashad end 2080 1,611,033 1,611,033 | 2,236,880
As on Ashad 26 2081 1,402,061 - 1,402,061 | 1,611,033
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITYA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement

As on 26th Ashad 2081
4.13 Deferred Tax Assets
2079-80
Deferred Tax |Deferred Tax| Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities | Assets/{Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fis
Loan and Advance to customers
Investment Properties
Investmnet securities
Praperty and Equipment 2,763,463 (2,763,463
Employees' defined benefit plan 7,021,691 7,021,691
Lease llabilities -1832727.443 (1,832,727
Frovisions -
Other temporary differences 1,573,195,80 1,573,196
Carry Loss Forward 58,486,224.59 58,486, 225
Deferred tax on temporary differences 65,248,384 | 1,763,463 62,484,921
Deferred tax on carry forwad of unused tax |osses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of Ashadh 2080 62,484,921
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2079 (5,512,548)
Origination/(Reveral) during the year 56,972,373
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in Profit or Loss 59,687,107
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income (2,714,734)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity -
2080-81
Deferred |DeferredTax| Deferred Tax
Tax Assets Liabilities | Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fis
Loan and Advance to customers -
Investment Properties
Investment securities
Property and Equipment 1,484.437.00 1,484,437
Employees’ defined benefit plan 5,749,795 5,749,795
Lease liabilities 1,489,415.29 1,489,415
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences 484,180,50 484,181
Carry Loss Forward - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 9,207,828 - 9,207,828
Deferred tax on carry forwad of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changas in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of Ashadh 26 2081 0,207 B28
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2080 62,484,921
Origination/{Reveral] during the year (53,277,093)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in Profit or Loss 49,014,613
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income 4,262,480
Deferred tax expense/{income) recognized in directly in equity -
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement
As on 26th Ashad 2081

4.14 Other Assets

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Assets held for sale

Other non banking assets

Bills receivable

Account Receivable

Accured Income

Prepayments and Deposit
Income tax deposits

Deferred employee expenditure
Accrued Bank Interest Income

Other

164,926
1,839,544
3,889,458

370,468

3.936,264 |

Total

5,893,928

4,306,731

4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Borrowing from BFls
Settlement and Clearing accounts
Other

1,871,047,296

1,371,298,772

Total

1,871,047,296

1,371,298,772

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreement
Other payable to NRB

Total
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement
As on 26th Ashad 2081

4.17 Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total

4.18 Deposits From Customers

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Institution customers:
Term Deposits
Call deposits
Other
Individual customers
Term Deposits
Saving Deposits
Saving from Members
Other

2,734,213,774

2,661,110,068

Total

2,734,213,774

2,661,110,068

4.19 Borrowing

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other licensed Institutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks
Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

% #¢! afias ufadeal 20C0/C9




emﬂﬁa&ﬁﬂﬁtﬂfmwm

MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement

As on 26th Ashad 2081

4.20 Provisions

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructruing

Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Onerous contracts

Other

Total . E

4.20.1: Movement in provision

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provision reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashadh end - -

4,21 Other Liabilities

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Liability of employee defined benefit obligations 1,613,935 5,243,986

Liability for long service leave 19,165,983 23,405,638

Staff Providend Payable 3,884 3,884

Short-term employee benefits - -

Creditars and accurals 5,905,538 13,109,884

Interest payable on deposit 344,096,987 327,558,340

Interest payable on borrowing 17,822,833 865,844

Liabilities on deferred grant income -

Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease -

Lease Liabilities 76,509,026 87,037,435

Employee bonus payable -

Other Liabilities 4,647,236 6,993,977
Staff Welfare Fund 501,588 748,488
TDS 3,583,211 2,826,299
Audit Fee 493,363 493,363
Dividend Payable 1,007
BOD Payable 69,074 29,750
Service Fee Refund - 2,895,061
Depreciation Fund - -

Total 469,765,422 464,218,988
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4.21.1: Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial positions are as follows:

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Present value of funded obligations

Present value of unfunded obligations 19,165,983 23,405,638

Total present value of obligations 19,165,983 23,405,638

Fair value of plan assets - -

Present value of net obligations 19,165,983 23,405,638

Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations 19,165,983 23,405,638

4.21.2: Plan assets

Plan assets comprise

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Equity securities

Governnent bonds

Bank deposits

Other - -

Total - -

Actual return on plan assets -

4.21.3 : Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars 208(-81 2079-80

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 23,405,638 22,917.484

Actuarial losses/(Gain) (14,208,268) (9,049,113.00)

Benefits paid during the year (1,949,916) (1,543,938)

Current service costs and interest 11,918,529 11 081,255

Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end 19,165,983 23,405,638
19,165,983.14

4.21.4: Movenent in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 -

Contributions paid into the plan - -

Benefits paid during the year - -

Actuarial {losses) gains -

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end

4.21.5 : Amount recognized in profit or loss

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Current Service costs 9,895,572 9,103,724

Acturial (gain)/loss

Interest an obligation 2,022,957 1,977,531

Expected return on plan assets

Total 11,918,529 11,081,255

4.21.6: Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Actuarial (gain)/loss (14,208, 268) (9,049,113)

Total (14,208,268) (9,049,113)

4.21.7: Actuarial assumptions

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Discount rate 9% 9%

Expected return on plan assets -

Future salary increase 8% 8%

Withdrawal rate 5% 5%
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement
As on 26th Ashad 2081
4.22 Debt Securities Issued

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through
profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortized cost

Total

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Redeemable preference shares

Irredeemable cumulative preference share (liabilities
component)

Other

Total

4.24 Share Capital

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Ordinary shares
Convertible preference share (equity component only)

Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only)

182,800,000

182,800,000

Total

182,800,000

182,800,000

4.24.1 : Ordinary shares

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Authorized Capital
2500000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

Issued capital
1828000 Ordinary share of Rs 100 each

Paidup capital
1828000 Ordinary share of Rs 100 each

250,000,000

182,800,000

182,800,000

250,000,000

182,800,000

182,800,000

Total

182,800,000

182,800,000
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4,24.2 : Ordinary Share Ownership

Particulars 2 201380
% Amount % Amount

Domestic ownership (Promoter)
Nepal Government
"A" Class licensed institutions 4.11% 1,517,650 4.11% 7,517,650
Other licensed institutions 7.05%| 12,887 400 7.05%| 12,887,400
Other institutions 38.19%| 69,818,175 38.19%| 69,818,175
Other 18.02%| 32,938,275 18.02%]| 32,938,275
Domestic ownership (Public)
Nepal Government
"A" Class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions 1.12% 2039134 1.12% 2039134
Other 31.51% 57599366| 31.51% 57599366
Foreingn ownership Promoter
Foreign Ownership Public
Total 100%| 182,800,000 100%| 182,800,000

Note : Name of each shareholder along with their holding percentage who holds 0.5% or more share shall be disclosed in 2

4.24.3 : Shareholder List of Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd above 0.5% Share Holding

Particulars Category Total Kitta |Paid-Up Amount %
Shreejana Development Center Promoter 391992 39,198,175 21.44%
Nepal Mahila Samudayik Sewa Kendra Promoter 294765 29,476,500 16.13%
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd Promoter 75176.5| 7,517,650 4.11%
Jyot Bikas Bank Ltd Promoter 64437 b,443,700 3.53%
Pokhara Finance Ltd Promoter 64437 6,443,700 3.53%
Gita Kumari Yogi Giri Promoter 22850 2,285,000 1.25%
Pawan Yog Promoter 12567.5 1,256,750 0.69%
Venture Trading and Investment Pvt.Ltd Promoter 11425 1,142,500 0.63%
Sushama Devkota Promoter 11425] 1,142,500 0.63%
Srijana Lamichhane Promoter 11425 1,142,500 D.63%
Bir Bahadur Adhikari Promoter 9666] 966,555 0.53%
4.25 Reserves
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Statutory General reserve 160,955,269 160,955,269
Capital reserve 2,940,000 4,200,000
Exchange equalization reserve -
Investment adjustment reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 27,989 637,834
Client Protection Fund 77,669,541 71,829,574
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 11,072,507 65,458,100
Restructure and Reschedule Reserve 24,842,730 22,146,418
Assets revaluation reserve
Falr value reserve -
Dividend equalization reserve - -
Actuarial gain 16,280,167 6,334,379
Special reserve - -
Other reserve 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total 303,789,003 341,561,574
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement
4.26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Others

Total

4,26.1: Capital commitments

Capital expendure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial statements

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

4.26.2 : Lease commitments

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the
institution is lessee

Not later than 1year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5years

Later than 5 Years

Subtotal

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where institution
Is lesee

Not laterthan 1 year

Later than 1year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 Years

Subtotal

Grand total

4.27 Interest Income

Particulars 2080-81

2079-80

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Loan and advance to financial institutions
Loan and advance to Customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other

5,819,222

649,842,851

1,366,263

12,065,245

737,996,078

762,442

Total interest income

657,028,336

750,823,766
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement

4.28 Interest Expense

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from Customers

Borrowing

Debt securities

Subordinated liabilities

Other

Lease Liabilities

176,666,617

230,784,088

-

7,676,379

234,871,155

192,532,552

8,977,207

Total interest expense

415,127,084

436,380,915

4.29 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Loan administration fees

Service fees

Commitment Fees

Card Issuance Fees

Prepaymnet and swap fees
Remittance fees

Brokerage Fees

Other fees and commission income

71,163,821

46,101,751

Total fees and Commission Income

71,163,821

46,101,751

4.30 Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars

2080-81

2075-80

Brokerage

ATM management fees

Visa Master card Fees

Guarantee Commission Fees

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift Fees

Remittance fees and commission income

Total fees and Commission Income
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement
4.31 Net Trading Income

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/Loss foreign exchange transaction
Other

Net trading income

4.32 Other Operating Income

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Foreing exchange revaluation gain

Gain/Loss on sale of investement securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other

18,131,597

11,467,507

Total

18,131,597

11,467,507

4.33 Impairment Charge/(reversal) for loans and Other Losses

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Impairment charge/(Reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fis
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
Impairment charge/(Reversal) on Placement

with banks and financial instituions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment chargef[reversai] on investment properties

42,945,264

147,242,216

Total

42,945,264

147,242,216
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
Notes to Financial Statement

As on 26th Ashad 2081
4.34 Personnel Expenses
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Salary 94,638,495 104,360,277
Allowance 92,854,003 103,047,941
Provision for Leave expense 11,918,529 11,081,255
Social Security Fund 15,741,033 16,020,023
Uniform - 4,877,000
Training and development expense 6,020,217 7,028,572
Leave encashment - 3,412
Cash-settled share based payments - -
Pension expense - .
Finance expense under NFRSs 139,236 87,484
Other expenses related to staff 21,750
Subtotal 221,311,513 246,527,714
Employee bonus -
Grand total 221,311,513 246,527,714
4.35 Other Operating Expenses
Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Director's fee 507,150 447,500
Directors' expense 1,477,341 1,596,185
Auditors’ remuneration Jalpa 500,000 500,000
Auditors' remuneration Mahila - -
Other audit related expense 396,735 208,461
Professional and legal expense -
Office admininstration expense 41,998,901 48,686,693
Office Rent Expense
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense - -
Supervision and Internal Audit Expense - 1,078,020
Onerous lease provisions - -
Total 44,880,126 52,516,859
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Water and electricity 1,273,792 1,197,311
Repair and maintenance

(a) Building - -
(b) Vehicle 540,497 560,082
(c) Computer and Accessories - -
(d) Office equipment and furniture 868,448 783,375
(e) Other 443,994 400,548
Insurance 265,768 250,297
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 9,717,628 9,990,169
Printing and stationery 3,748,597 6,921,844
Newspaper, books and journals 19,910 39,060
Advertisement 189,331 300,132
Fixed Asset Write off - -
Security expense - -
Deposit and loan gurantee premium - -
Travel allowance and expense 7,452,815 7,732,166
Entertainment - -
Annual/Special general meeting expense 375,165 409,817
Other

Share Management Expenses 528,837 95,550
Technical Services Fee 322,897 828,015
Staff Field Expense 4,494,910 5,143,500
Office Equipment and Misc furniture Expense 101,947 393,304
Carpet, Curtain Expense 23,297 270,455
Local Government Tax Expenses 524,099 516,617
Guest Reception 585,830 584,148
Fuel for Vehicle 804,576 1,093,564
Other misc and transportation exp 747,410 1,411,799
Staff meeting expense 399,459 520,174
Software related expense 4,042,265 3,530,839
Renewal/Service Fee 3,666,771 5,480,957
Membership Exp 51,000 31,000
Merger Expense 340,381 60,370
Workshop and Seminar Exp 464,427 74,400
CIB Expenses 4,850 -
Anneversary - -
Loss on theft - 67,195
Total 41,998,901 48,686,693
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Jalpa Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

Notes to Financial Statement
As on 26th Ashad 2081

4.36 Depreciation and Amortization

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Depreciation and property and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets

26,937,475

693,647

Total

27,631,122

4.37 Non Operating Income

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Recovery of loan written off
Other income

Total

4.38 Non Operating Expenses

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Loan written off
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring
Other expense

Total

4.39 Income Tax Expenses

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Current tax expense

15,936,293

1,942,039

Current year
Adjustment for prior years

9,609,452
6,326,841

1,942,039

Deferred tax expense

49,014,613

(59,687,107)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Change in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses

49,014,613

(59,687,107)

Total

64,950,906

(57,745,068)

4.39.1: Reconcilliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars

2080-81

2079-80

Profit before tax

Tax amount at tax rate of 30%

Add : Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
Less : Tax effect on exempt income

Add/Less : Tax effect on other items

(4,724,912)
(1,417,473)
11,026,925

(101,905,802)
(30,571,741)
30,571,741

Total income tax expense

9,609,452

Effective tax rate

-203.38%

0.00%
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Joldiel DIRITGRI®! f[daor

SN| Monitoring Office Address Monitoring Head | Contact E-mail
1 |Salakpur Morang :‘E‘ndarharalcha-ﬂ, Suman Khatri 0819203341 |salakpur. monitering@matribhumiml.com.np
rang
2 |Simara Bara litpursimara-4, Bara  |Asok Parajuli 9856485501 |simara monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
3 |Bardibas Mahottari |Bardibas-1, Mahottari  |Balkrishna Karki 9843542697 bardibas. monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
4 |Panchkhal Kavre  |Panchkhal-4, Kavre Bishnu Prasad Jaishi | 9848085872 panchkhal . monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Kawasoti . . . : . .
5 : Kawasoti-8, Nawolpur |Dipendar Giri 0856012109 kawasoti, monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Nawalparsi East
Shuklagandaki -7,
6 |Khairanitar Tanhun Tanahngu Prem Nath Bhattrai | 9856019103 |khairenitar.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Thatipokhari
7 Go rkli:- Palungtar-5, Ghorakha |[Dipendar Adhikari 0856019102|thatipokhari. monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
B |Pokhara Kaski Pokhara-08, Kaski Ganesha Sharma 8856019101 |pokhara.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Bansgadhi Salnamaina-9, Khaga Kumari
9 9847836770|bansgadi . monitoring@matribhumimf.com.n
Rupandehi Rupandehi Bhandari 6 8¢ P
10 {Bijauri Dang Tusipur-6, Dang Sila Puri 9847824603 |bijauri.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
11 [Bijuwar Pyuthan Pyuthan-4, Pyuthan Ramesha Adhikari 9857863762|bljuwar.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
12 |Ghorahi Dang Ghorahi-15, Dang Gagan Yog| 9856019124 ghorahi, monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
13 |Kohalpur Banke Kohalpur-2, Banke Prem Bahadur Thapa | 9848570346|kohalpur.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Kamal Bahadur
14 {Luham Salyan kapurkot-3, Salyan Mahara 8856019121 luham.manitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
15 {Bheriganga Surkhet |Bheriganga-11, Surkhet |Opendar Giri 4856019127 bheriganga.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
16 |Manma Kalikot Khandachakra-1, Kalikot |Sahadev BK 8848441752 manma.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Machindra Bahad
17 |Baliya Kailali Lamki Chuha-4, Kailal Sham'" 2RI 0848567290 baliya. monitoring@matribhumimf. com.np
18 |Attariya Kailali Godawari-2, Kailali Gam Bahadur Khadka | 9848434393 |godawari. monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Amargadhi-1, e . .
19 {Sayule Dadeldhura Akal Bahadur Sahi | 9848430618|syaule. monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
Dadeldhura
20 |Patan Baitadi Patan-6, Baitadi Khemraj Joshi 9849054720|patan.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
21 [Mangalsen Achham |Mangalsen-5, Achham |Mohan Neupane 9860766361 |mangalsen.monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
22 |Martadi Bajura Badimalika-8, Bajura  |Nar Bdr Saud 6848413896|martadi. monitoring@matribhumimf.com.np
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

IRAT hRIfeIRIMD! fda3or

District SN Branch Phone E-mail
llam 1 |Mangalbare Branch 9862286439 |mangalbare.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Jhapa 2 |Birtamod Branch 9804936293 |birtamod.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
3 [Salakpur Branch 9868393628 |salakpur.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
4 |Bansban Branch 9815320181 |bansbari.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Morang 5 |Bahuni Branch 9869996484 |bahuni.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
6 |Pathar Branch g;;ﬁgﬁé pathan.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Netachok Branch 9861483695 |netachok.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Panchathar 8 |Jorpokhan Branch 0745262221 |jorpokhar. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
9 |Ramdhuni Branch 9845176383  |ramdhuni.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Sk 10 ‘;‘:i:if‘e'a“a 9811374058  |amahibelaha.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
11 Ef;:ﬂmhga“hh' 9842427147  |kadamgachhi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Khotang 12 |Aiselukharka Branch |9849516269 |aiselukharka.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
District SN Branch Phone E-mail
— 13 |Kanchanrup Branch 031-560067 |kanchanrup.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
14 |Kathauna Branch 9807798412 |kathauna.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
1 | SlisncrEtaar 9811126275 |birendrabazar. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Dhanusha Branch
16 |Yadukaha Branch 9801995751 |yadukaha.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
_ 17 g'::f;dmmﬂ" 033-545209  |dhangadhimai, branch@matribhumimf.com.np
18 |Kalyanpur Branch 9845852140 |kalyanpur.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
e 19 |Bardibas Branch 9769845351 |bardibas.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
20 |Bharampura Branch Q863750385 |bharampura. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
21 |Barahathwa Branch  [9811250299 |barahathwa.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Sarlahi 22 |Lalbandi Branch 9849598988 |lalbandi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
23 |Bagmati Branch 9856046721 |bagmati.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
24 gi‘;‘:ﬂ:”gaﬁh 9702169112  |simraungadh.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Bara 25 |Nijgadh Branch 9856019057 |nijgadh.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
26 |Kohalbi Branch 9848654882 |kohalbi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
27 |Simara Branch 9845787558 |[simara branch@matribhumimf.com.np
_— 28 |Badhnihar Branch 9706067897 |badhnihar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
29 |Suryaha Branch 9848056390 |suryaha.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
T, 30 |Santapur Branch 9812219326 |satapur.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
31 |Himalibas Branch 9855012519 |himalibash.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

IRAT hRIfeIRID! fdazor

Bagmati Province

District SN Branch Phone E-mail
s 32 gfgﬁ““rﬂadm 9856019096  |hariharpurgadhi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
33 |Ratmata Branch 9865428323 |ratmata.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Makawanpur 34 |Manahari Branch 9842328334 |manahari.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
35 |Hetauda Branch 0856019040 |hetauda.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Stitegwan 36 |Belsi Branch ggﬁﬁaﬁnﬂ?}iﬁa belsi.branch@matribhumimfi.com.np
37 |Jhurjhure Branch 9856019035 |jhurjhure.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
38 |Bhakundebesi Branch |9842926843 |bhakundebesi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Kabhreplanchok | 39 |Panauti Branch 9868453862 |panauti.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
40 |Panchkhal Branch 98511118010 |panchkhal.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
Dholakha 41 |Tamakoshi Branch 9865751884 |tamakoshi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Lalitpur 42 |lmadol Branch 9863236998 |imadol.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Ramechhap 43 |Sadidanda Branch 9860438260 |sadidanda.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Sindhuplananchok | 44 |Jyamire Branch 984381279  |jyamire.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Kathmandu 45 S:;I::i;eshwur 9848546200 |gokameshwor.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
District SN Branch Phone E-mail
46 |Devachuli Branch 9866734005 |devachuli.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
47 |Kawasoti Branch géiaﬁ?ffa kawasoti,branch@matrbhumime.com.np
| 48 |Bhedabari Branch ggz;ﬁ?fzﬂg bhedabari.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Nawalparasi East 078410158 .
49 |Chormara Branch 985601 EIDZE. chormara.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
50 |Dedgaun Branch 9856019053 |dedgaun.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
51 |Sardi Branch g;g%ﬁﬂ[z?'}[};{ sardi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
52 |Besisahar Branch 9856019011  |besisahar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
53 |Sundarbazar Branch |66402225 sundarbazar. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Lamjung 54 |Bhorletar Branch 9806019005 |Bhorletar..branch@malnbhumimf.com.np
55 |Duipiple Branch 9856019005 [Duipiple.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
56 [Tinpiple Branch 9856074632 |linpiple.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

IRAT HRITeI=—ID] fdazon

District SN Branch Phone E-mail

57 |Ghyalchok Branch 9848459238 |ghyalchok.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

58 |Thatipokhari Branch  |9856019006 |thatipokhari.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

29 |Chebbtar Branch 9856019008 |chebbtar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
i 60 |Bhhachheck Branch  [9856019010 |bhhachheck.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

61 |Gorkha Branch 64421584 gorkha. branch@matribhumimf.com.np

62 |Bhimsen Branch 9856000636 |bhimsen.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

63 |Pokhara Branch 9856019001 |pokhara.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

64 |Hemja Branch 9856019007 |hemja.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
ik 65 |Nagdada Branch 9856019016 |nagdada.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

66 |Bagar Branch 9856019017 |bagar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

67 |Lekhnath Branch 9856019002 |lekhanath.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

68 |Biraula Branch 9856019022 |birauta.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np

69 |Setidhovan Branch 9856019024 |setidhovan.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Syangja 70 |Helu Branch 9856019025 |helu.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

71 |Chapakot Branch 9856019027 |chapakot.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Baglung 72 |Badigad Branch 9856019080 |badigad.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np

73 |Damauli Branch 69856018002 |damauli.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np

74 |Khaireni Branch 9856019003 |khaireni,branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Tanahnu 75 |Manpur Branch 9856019014  |manpurtanahu.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

76 |Bandipur Branch 9856019018 |Bandipur.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np

77 |Bhansar Branch 9856019004 |bhansar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
District SN Branch Phone E-mail

78 |Bhurigau Branch 9865821140 |bhurigau.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

79 E:ig:ﬁr Santibazar op48657894  |patabhar branch@matribhumimf com.np

80 'E'q;';'f;: 1aprg 9865745505 | manpurtapara.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Rardlya 81 |Kakaura Branch 9860761717 |kakaura.branch@matrnbhumimf.com.np

82 |Barbardiya Branch 9858488462 |barbardiya.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np

83 |Madhuwan Branch 9848575589 |madhuwan.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

84 |Badhaiyatal Branch  |9B44886617 |badhaiyatal.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

85 |Rapti Sonari Branch  |9B6B416934 |raptisonari.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
i 86 |Kohalpur Branch 9869984125 |kohalpur.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Kapilbasthu 87 |Pipara Branch 9848654882 |pipara.branch@matribhumimf.com.np

88 |Shitganga Branch 9865136545 |shitganga.branch@matribhumimf,com.np

i I g'::;g':“ma" 9868667549  |bhumikasthan,branch@matribhumimf.com.np
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

IRAT hRIfeI—IMD! fda3or

District SN Branch Phone E-mail
90 |Suryapura Branch 9856019037 |suryapura.branch@matribhumim{.com.np
Rupandei 91 E?;E;rdanda 9856019044 |pattherdanda.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
92 |Bansgadhi Branch 08568019037 |bansgadhi.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
93 |Devdaha Branch 9845184851 |dewlaha.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Palpa 94 |Humin Branch 9856019036 |humin.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
Nawalparasi West| 95 |Badera Branch 9856019042 |badera.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
Guimi 96 |lsma Branch 9856019046 |isma.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
97 |Bhaluwang Branch 82415058 bhaluwang.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
98 |Lamahi Branch 82540604 lamahi.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
99 |Narayanpur Branch 82530234 narayanpur.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
100 {Murkuti Branch 9847956032 |murkuti.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
101 |Gadhawa Branch 82410065 gadhawa.branchi@matribhumimf.com.np
102 |Ghorahi Branch 82563496 ghorahi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
103 [Hasipur Branch 9847962733 |hasipur.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Dang 104 |Rajpur Branch 9847841148 |rajpur.branch@matribhumimi.com.np
105 |Bijaun Branch 082-522810  |bijauri.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
106 |Hapure Branch 9809540096 |hapure.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
107 :r::éLnagar 9847826076 |shantinagar. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
108 | Shreegaun Branch 0847840972 |shreegau.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
109 |Madhapur Branch 0B47828932 |madhpur.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
110 {Phulbari Branch 9860926691 |phulbari.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
111 |Bhingn Branch 86400084 bhingr.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
112 | Bijuwar Branch 86460450 bijuwar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
113 |Bahane Branch 9761867567 |bahane.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Pyuther 114 |Baraula Branch 0868281580 |baraula.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
115 |Baddada Branch 9869984160 |baddada.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
116 |Machhi Branch 09866171227 |machhi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
117 | Thulabesi Branch 9869984138  |thulabesi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
118 |Chujathati Branch 9869595545  |chujathati. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
119 {Liwang Branch 0869984147  |liwang.branch@matrnbhumimf.com.np
120 [Sulichour Branch 86401087 sulichour.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
Rolpa 121 |Jungar Branch 97685872121  |jungar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
122 {Surpal Branch 0847880882 |surpal.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
123 |Madi Branch 9847911561 |madi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Rukum East | 124 [Sisne Branch 9847841895 |madi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

IRAT hRIfeIR—ID) fdazor

District SN Branch Phone E-mail
125 :;';':::1 Rranen 9869984137  |luham.branch1@matribhumimf.com.np
126 [Sallibazar Branch 0847529361 |sallibazar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Salyan 127 |Kalimati Branch 32;?2}2239 kalimati.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
128 |Luham Branch QBEBE-*!EEB:# luham.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
129 |Mokhala Branch 9748220922 |mokhala.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
130 {Shreenagar Branch 9768312346 |[shreenagar.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
District SN Branch Phone E-mail
131 [Rakam Branch 0845556681 |rakam.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
132 |Chamunda Branch 9865696508 |chamunda.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
_ 133 |Gurase Branch 9864833291 |gurase branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Dailekha 134 |Dullu Branch 98431151563  |dullu.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
135 |Naumule Branch 9848097465 |naumule.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
136 [Raskot Branch 9865764231 |raskot.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
137 [Manma Branch 9848520501 |manma.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
i 138 [Narharinath Branch 9860720684 |narhannath.branch@matnbhumimi.com.np
139 |Galjebazzar Branch  |9B48329625 |galjebazzar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
140 | Thirpu Branch 9849050888 |thirpu.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
o 141 |Narakot Branch 9868314446 [narakot.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
142 | Tatapani Branch 9865548301  [tatapani.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
143 |Gutu Branch 9841676715  |gutu.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
144 [Matela Branch 9848524920 |matela.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
145 |Baddichaur Branch 9860330280 |baddichaur.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
B 146 |Bhenganga Branch 9765873693 |bheriganga.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
147 [Mehelkuna Branch 9847829846 |mehelkuna.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
148 EE::;E"EQE’ 9845988662 |birendranagar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
149 [Dalli Branch 9848582672 |[dalll.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
Jajarkot 150 |Khalanga Branch 9863104644 |khalanga.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
151 | Thalaha Branch 9844753825 |thalaha.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Mgk 152 |kawadi Branch 9858480812 |kawadi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
153 |Simkot Branch 9868884178 |simkot.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Mugu 154 |Ratapani Branch 9868900754 |ratapani.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
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Sudurpaschim Province

District SN Branch Phone E-mail
155 |Martadi Branch 9864612078 |martadi.branch@matribhumimf,com.np
g 156 |Dogadi Branch 9848662979 |dogadi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
157 |Kolti Branch 9848480431 |kolti.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
158 [Phalasain Branch 9866340482 |phalasain.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
159 | Jayagadh Branch 9865794581  |jayagadh.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
160 {Chaurpati Branch 9868447843 |chaurpali.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
161 ;‘:ﬁ":::“a”d 9862470107  |turmakhand.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
162 |Mellekha Branch 9847502390 |mellekha.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
163 |Mangalsen Branch 9848478125 |mangalsen.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Aachham 164 |Sanfebagar Branch ~ |9848585785 |sanfebagar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
165 |Mujabagar Branch 9848912640 |mujabagar.branch@matribhurnimf.com.np
166 |Kamalbazar Branch  |9868754546 |kamalbazar.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
167 |Chaukhutte Branch 9848550574 |chaukhutte branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
168 |Binayak Branch 9848435722 |binayak. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
169 |Dhakar Branch 9868764321 |dhakari.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
170 [Durgauli Branch 9848517387  |durgauli.matribhumimi@gmail.com
171 |Bauniya Branch 9848571617  |bauniya.matnbhumimf@gmail.com
—_ 172 |Sukhad Branch 9848529677 |sukhad.matribhumimf@gmail.com
173 |Sugarkhal Branch 9868452610 |sugarkhal.matribhumimfi@gmail.com
174 |Asnery Branch 9865769401 |asnery. matribhumimf@gmail.com
175 |Baliya Branch 9868551444 | baliya. matribhumimf@gmail.com
176 |Bhajani Branch 9868527294  |bhajani.branchi@matribhumi.com.np
177 |Dhangadhi Branch 9868401560 |dhangadhi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
i 178 |Attariya Branch 9869445555 |attanya.branch@matribhumi.com.np
179 |Chaumala Branch 9848485079 |chaumala.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
180 |Kallari Branch 0848441787 |kailan.branch@matribhumi.com.np
181 |Masuriya Branch, 9865747176 |masuriya branch@matribhumimf.com.np
182 |Sisaiya Branch 9B48462925  |sisaiya.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
183 g'::::b“a’ 9848467735 |dhakkabazar. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
184 [g::?: Chandan 6848502260 |dodhara.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Kanchanpur 185 |Beldadi Branch 9865685685 |beldadi.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
186 |Bedkot Branch 9866862088 |bedkot.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
187 :E:;iphanta 9844972740 |shuklaphanta.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
188 |Krisnapur Branch 9848500300 |krisnapur.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
189 |Bhimdatta Branch 9848741074  |bhimdatta. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
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MATRIBHUMI LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.
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District SN Branch Phone E-mail
Wkt 190 {Syaule Branch 9848752329 |syaule.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
191 |Alital Branch 9868919815 |alital.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
192 |Budar Branch 9845253852 |budar.branch@matrbhumimf.com.np
. 193 [Walil Branch 9860780107 |wail. branch@matribhumimf.com.np
= 194 |Dipayal Branch 94440293 dipayal.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
195 |Bogtan Branch 9848851974  |bogtan.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
196 |Deura Branch 92590731 deura.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
197 |Simkhet Branch 9BE5751884  |simkhet.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Bajhanga 198 | Deulekh Branch 9848889619 |deulekh.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
198 |Chhanna Branch 9868522954 |chhanna.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
200 |Bijagada Branch 9848433946 |bijagada.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
201 |Patan Branch 9741708830 |patan.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
—— 202 g::;l.lapani 9848833115 |gothalapani.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
203 |Melauli Branch 9769874850 |melauli.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
204 |Purchaudi Branch 9848602182 |[purchaudi.branch@matnbhumimf.com.np
205 |Dhap Branch 9848493043 |dhap.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
206 |Latinath Branch 9864645540 |latinath.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
Darchula 207 g:knﬂ:shwar 0843148609 |gokuleshor,branch@matribhumimf.com.np
208 [Pasti Branch 9848701343 |pasli.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
209 |Naugadh Branch 9848601661 |naugadh.branch@matribhumimf.com.np
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* MATRIBHUMI LAGHURITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LYD.

Unveilling The Vision:
“A Transformative Journey
With
Quality Assurance”
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Head Office: Corporate Office:
Lamkichuha-4, Baliya, Kailali, Nepal Budhanilkantha-7,

00977 91-419068 Kathmandu, Nepal

Email: info@matribhumimf.com.np Phone: 00977 1-4372274
www.matribhumimf.com.np Email: info@matribhumimf.com.np

www.matribhumimf.com.np
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